In-person participation by the public will be permitted. In addition, remote public
participation is available in the following ways:

1.

Livestream online at www.atwater.org (Please be advised that there is a
broadcasting delay. If you would like to participate in public comment, please use
the option below).

Submit a written public comment prior to the meeting: Public comments submitted
to planning@atwater.org by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting will be distributed
to the Planning Commission and made part of the official minutes but will not be
read out loud during the meeting.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Persons requesting
accommodation should contact the City in advance of the meeting, and as soon as
possible, at (209) 812-1031.

CITY OF ATWATER

PLANNING COMMISSION
AGENDA

Council Chambers
750 Bellevue Road
Atwater, CA 95301

October 16, 2024

CALL TO ORDER: 6:00 PM

INVOCATION:

Invocation by Police Chaplain McClellan

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG:

ROLL CALL:

Kadach , Mokha , Sanchez-Garcia , Sanders , Borgwardt

SUBSEQUENT NEED ITEMS: (The Planning Secretary shall announce any requests for items

requiring immediate action subsequent to the posting of the agenda. Subsequent need items require a two-
thirds vote of the members of the Commission present at the meeting.)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AS AMENDED: (This is the time for the

Commission to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.)


http://www.atwater.org/
mailto:planning@atwater.org

Planning Commission Agenda for Meeting of October 16, 2024 Page 2

Staff’s Recommendation: Motion to approve agenda as posted or as amended.

MINUTES:
1. August 21, 2024 — Regular Meeting

Staff’s Recommendation: Approval of minutes as listed.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

None

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2. Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution approving
Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-22-0200,
located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, Atwater (APN 001-146-011).
(Applicant: BK Industries Inc.)

Staff’'s Recommendation: Open the public hearing and receive any
testimony given;

Close the public hearing;

Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guideline section 15303, Class 3 “New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures;” and adopt Resolution No.
0255-24 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100, and Site Plan
No. 24-22-0200 located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, Atwater (APN: 001-
146-011)

3. Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending City
Council adopt a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment amending
Chapter 17.16 “Low Density Residential Districts” of the Atwater
Municipal Code to add “R-1-5” (5,000 square foot lots) as a single-
family residential district under the Low-Density Residential Zone.
(Applicant: City of Atwater)

Staff’'s Recommendation: Open the public hearing and receive any
testimony given;

Close the public hearing;

Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guideline section 15061(b)(3), “Review
for Exemption”, under the common sense exemption, and adopt Resolution
No. 0256-24 Recommending the City Council Adopt Zoning Ordinance Text
Amendment No. 24-23-0100 Amending Chapter 17.16: “Low Density



Planning Commission Agenda for Meeting of October 16, 2024 Page 3

Residential Districts” of the Atwater Municipal Code, to add “R-1-5" (5,000
square foot lots) as a Single Family Residential district.

4. Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending the
City Council of Atwater approve an Amendment to Update the
Improvement Standards and Specifications of the City of Atwater
(Applicant: City of Atwater)

Staff’'s Recommendation: Open the public hearing and receive any
testimony given;

Close the public hearing;

Adopt Resolution No. 0258-24 making a recommendation to the City
Council of Atwater to approve an amendment and update to the
Improvement Standards and Specifications of the City of Atwater by
repealing the current city standards listed here: DR-1, SCG-1, SCG-2, SCG-
4, SCG-5, ST-3 and replacing them with the attached improvement
standards. Adopt standard details ST-8, ST-9. Repeal standard details D-
1, D-5.

5. Public Hearing to make a finding that the proposed shade structure
for Veterans Memorial Park in Atwater, CA (APN: 005-070-001),
conforms with the City’s policies, codes, and guidelines for
government buildings pursuant to the Atwater Municipal Code
17.12.060.

(Applicant: City of Atwater)

6. Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending City
Council adopt a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment amending
Chapter 17.28 “Accessory Dwelling Units” of the Atwater Municipal
Code to comply with recent changes in State law; and finding the
action to be statutorily exempt from CEQA under section 21080.17 of
the Public Resources Code.

(Applicant: City of Atwater)

Staff’'s Recommendation: Open the public hearing and receive any
testimony given;

Close the public hearing;

Make a finding that the project is statutorily exempt from review under the
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Public Resources
Code section 21080.17; and adopt Resolution No. 0259-24 Recommending
the City Council Adopt Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment No. 24-28-0100
amending Chapter 17.28 “Accessory Dwelling Units” of the Atwater
Municipal Code to comply with recent changes in State law.



Planning Commission Agenda for Meeting of October 16, 2024 Page 4

REPORTS AND PRESENTATION FROM STAFF:

7. Deputy City Manager / Community Development Director Verbal Updates

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

At this time any person may comment on any item which is not on the agenda. You may state your name and
address for the record; however, it is not required. Action will not be taken on an item that is not on the agenda. If
it requires action, it will be referred to staff and/or placed on a future agenda. Please limit comments to a maximum
of three (3) minutes.

COMMISSIONER MATTERS:

ADJOURNMENT:

CERTIFICATION:

I, Kayla Rashad, Planning Commission Recording Secretary, do hereby certify that a copy
of the foregoing Agenda was posted at City Hall a minimum of 72 hours prior to the
meeting.

Kayla Rashad,
Planning Commission Recording Secretary

SB 343 NOTICE

In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing or document that is a public
record, relates to an open session agenda item and is distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular
meeting will be made available for public inspection in the Community Development Department at City
Hall during normal business hours at 750 Bellevue Road.

If, however, the document or writing is not distributed until the regular meeting to which it relates, then the
document or writing will be made available to the public at the location of the meeting, as listed on this
agenda at 750 Bellevue Road.

agenda can be provided in an alternative format to accommodate special needs. If you
require special accommodations to participate in a Planning Commission meeting due to
a disability, please contact the Planning Commission Secretary a minimum of three (3)
business days in advance of the meeting at planning@atwater.org or (209) 812-1031. You
may also send the request by email to

t In compliance with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, upon request, the



mailto:planning@atwater.org

CITY OF ATWATER

PLANNING COMMISSION

ACTION MINUTES

August 21, 2024

REGULAR SESSION: (Council Chambers)

The Planning Commission of the City of Atwater met in Regular Session
this date at 6:00 PM in the City Council Chambers located at the Atwater
Civic Center, 750 Bellevue Road, Atwater, California;

INVOCATION:

Invocation by Chaplain McClellan

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG:

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Borgwardt

ROLL CALL:

Present: Planning Commission Members Kadach, Mokha, Sanchez-
Garcia, and Chair Borgwardt.

Absent: Planning Commission Member Sanders

Staff Present: Battalion Chief Lopes, Building Permit Technician Ruiz

(Translator) Chief Salvador, City Engineer Seymour, Deputy
City Manager Thompson, Lieutenant Novetzke, Recording
Secretary Rashad .

SUBSEQUENT NEED ITEMS:

None



APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AS AMENDED:

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Kadach moved to approve the agenda.
The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Sanchez-Garcia and
the vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Mokha, Kadach, Sanchez-
Garcia and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission Member
Sanders. The motion passed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

a) July 17, 2024 — Regular Meeting

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Kadach moved to approve the agenda.
The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Mokha and the vote
was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Mokha, Kadach, Sanchez-Garcia and
Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission Member Sanders. The
motion passed.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

Public hearing to consider approving a request from Old Town Atwater for a Fall Festival
and Car Show on September 21, 2024, from 6:00am-5:00pm with temporary road
closures.

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided background on this project.
Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.

Applicant Adam Reed spoke on the project.

No one else came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Kadach moved to approve the request
from Old Town Atwater for a Fall Festival and Car Show on September 21, 2024,
from 6:00am-5:00pm with temporary road closures. The motion was seconded by
Planning Commission Member Mokha and the vote was: Ayes: Planning
Commission Members Mokha, Kadach, Sanchez-Garcia and Borgwardt; Noes:
None; Absent: Planning Commission Member Sanders. The motion passed.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

Public Hearing to recommend that the City Council of the City of Atwater adopt an Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration in accordance with California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) for the project; and approve Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map No.



22-23-0100 for a site located East of Buhach Rd and immediately North and adjacent to
Meadow View Estates No. 1, Atwater (APN 005-070-052).

(Applicant: Silver Creek Crossing, LLC)

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided background on this project.
Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.

Jim Price came forward to speak.

Applicant Ramson Piro spoke on his project.

No one else came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Mokha moved to Adopt Resolution No.
0216-22 recommending that the City Council of the City of Atwater adopt an Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration in accordance with California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the project; and approve Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map No. 22-23-0100 for a site located East of Buhach Rd and
immediately North and adjacent to Meadow View Estates No. 1, Atwater (APN 005-
070-052). The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Sanchez-
Garcia, and the vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Kadach, Mokha,
Sanchez-Garcia, and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission
Member Sanders. The motion passed.

Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No.
24-17-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-17-0200, for a mobile food vendor located at 860
Applegate Rd, Atwater (APN 003-170-028).

(Applicant: Carlos Maciel)

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided background on this project.
Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.

Jim Price came forward to speak regarding traffic concerns.
Applicant Carlos Maciel spoke on his project.

No one else came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.



MOTION: Planning Commission Member Mokha moved to Adopt Resolution No.
0250-24 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 24-17-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-17-
0200, for a mobile food vendor located at 860 Applegate Rd, Atwater (APN 003-170-
028). The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Sanchez-Garcia,
and the vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Kadach, Mokha, Sanchez-
Garcia, and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission Member
Sanders. The motion passed.

Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution approving Conditional Use Permit No.
24-19-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-19-0200, for a mobile food vendor located at 1100
Shaffer Rd, Atwater (APN 004-110-005).

(Applicant: Vicente Lupian-Manzo)

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided background on this project and let the
applicant know that when Phase 2 of the Shannon’s Mini Mart begins construction,
that the site will need to be re-evaluated including this mobile food vendor
business.

Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.
Applicant Vicente Lupian-Manzo spoke on his project.
No one else came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Mokha moved to Adopt Resolution No.
0252-24 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 24-19-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-19-
0200, for a mobile food vendor located at 1100 Shaffer Rd, Atwater (APN 004-110-
005). The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Kadach, and the
vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Kadach, Mokha, Sanchez-Garcia,
and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission Member Sanders. The
motion passed.

Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending that the City Council of
the City of Atwater approve Preferred Alternative Alignment No. 3 for the Bellevue
Rehabilitation/Realignment Project.

City Engineer Seymour provided background on this project.
Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.
No one came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.



MOTION: Planning Commission Member Sanchez-Garcia moved to Adopt
Resolution No. 0253-24 recommending that the City Council of the City of Atwater
approve Preferred Alternative Alignment No. 3 for the Bellevue
Rehabilitation/Realignment Project. The motion was seconded by Planning
Commission Member Mokha, and the vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission
Members Kadach, Mokha, Sanchez-Garcia, and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent:
Planning Commission Member Sanders. The motion passed.

Public Hearing to consider adopting a resolution approving Time Extension Request No.
24-21-0100 regarding previously approved Conditional Use Permit No. 21-11-0100 and
Site Plan No. 21-11-0200 for a mini storage facility located at APN: 001-146-013 & 017
West of 1619 Sycamore Avenue.

(Applicant: Jatinder Randhawa)

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided background on this project.
Chair Borgwardt opened the public hearing.

No one came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public hearing.

MOTION: Planning Commission Member Kadach moved to Adopt Resolution No.
0254-24 approving Time Extension Request No. 24-21-0100 regarding previously
approved Conditional Use Permit No. 21-11-0100 and Site Plan No. 21-11-0200 for
a mini storage facility located at APN: 001-146-013 & 017 West of 1619 Sycamore
Avenue. The motion was seconded by Planning Commission Member Sanchez-
Garcia, and the vote was: Ayes: Planning Commission Members Kadach, Mokha,
Sanchez-Garcia, and Borgwardt; Noes: None; Absent: Planning Commission
Member Sanders. The motion passed.

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS FROM STAFF:

Deputy City Manager / Community Development Director Updates.

Deputy City Manager Thompson provided a brief update on Economic
Development.

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC:

Chair Borgwardt opened the public comment.

Notice to the public was read.



No one came forward to speak.

Chair Borgwardt closed the public comment.
COMMISSIONER MATTERS:

None

ADJOURNMENT:

Chair Borgwardt adjourned the meeting at 7:11 PM.

Don Borgwardt, Chair

By: Kayla Rashad
Recording Secretary



/ PLANNING COMMISSION \

PLANNING COMMISSION Jogandeep Mokha
Donald Borgwardt lleisha Sanders
AGENDA REPORT

Harold Kadach Mayra Sanchez-Garcia

N J

MEETING DATE: October 16, 2024

TO: Chair and Commissioners
FROM: Scott Ruffalo, Planning Technician
SUBJECT: Public hearing to consider adopting a resolution approving

Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100 and Site Plan No. 24-22-
0200 located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue in Atwater (APN: 001-
146-011).

RECOMMENDED COMMISSION ACTION:

It is recommended that Planning Commission:

1. Open the public hearing and receive any testimony from the public; and,

2. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guideline section 15303, Class 3 “New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures;” and,

3. Adopt Resolution No. 0255-24 approving Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100,
and Site Plan No. 24-22-0200 located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, Atwater (APN:
001-146-011)

l. BACKGROUND:

The subject property is located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, Atwater APN 001-146-011.
The freestanding two-sided digital billboard will be constructed on the southwest portion
of a 1.2-acre vacant lot. The proposed request for the freestanding two-sided digital
billboard is intended to help support the newly established development in the area and
potentially provide other advertising opportunities for businesses within the Atwater
community.

I. ANALYSIS:




Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 2

The applicant, BK Industries, Inc is requesting to construct a freestanding two-sided
digital billboard located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, Atwater (APN: 001-146-011). The
electronic message board, including supporting structure, will be approximately forty-nine
feet and in height have an envelope of 1,000 square feet and consist of one pillar. The
electronic message board will be constructed of metal and have two sides with each side
containing an electronic message board 37 feet and 6-inches from the finished ground
surface and no higher than 49 feet. The two electronic message boards will each contain
a display of approximately 380 square feet per side (760 square feet total). The sign
structure will sit one pillar located approximately 24 feet 2-inches from the property line
on Sycamore Avenue and 23 feet from the westerly portion property line along the
Parriera Drain. The general character and aesthetic of the structure will be metal
construction with a natural quartzite wall tile at the base of the structure. The electronic
message boards will be used to provide advertising opportunities for the local business
market as well as provide a place for creating awareness for community events.

The project is located at 1883 Sycamore Avenue, APN 001-146-011 (see Figure 1). The
subject property is zoned B-P (Business Park) has a Land Use Designation of Business
Park per the Atwater General Plan. Per the Atwater Municipal Code (AMC) 17.69.240,
businesses located within 300 feet of the Freeway 99 right-of-way may have one
freestanding sign up to 50 feet in height measured from the finished grade to the top of
the sign and may exceed 250 square feet in area subject to the approval of a conditional
use permit.

1. The Electronic Message Board is consistent with Sections 17.69.500(A),
17.69.240, 17.69.050(Q) and 17.69.120(H) of this Code.

2. The orientation of the face of the Electronic Message Board is not detrimental to
the character of development in the immediate neighborhood and does not pose
a safety risk to motorists or pedestrians.

3. The Electronic Message Board is consistent with the City's General Plan, the City's
Zoning Code, City Municipal Code and all other applicable codes and regulations.

AMC 17.69.500(A) provides guidelines for several different types of signage such as
monument signs, Freestanding Reader Board, Electronic Message Boards, and
freestanding signs to name a few for example. The majority of the municipal code that
provides guidance regarding the Freestanding Electric Message board will be located in
17.69.500 (A)(2) which is identified above and AMC 17.69.500(A)(5). AMC
17.69.500(A)(5) states all monument signs, freestanding signs, and directional signs shall
be placed within the landscaped area to be equipped with a seven-day automatic
irrigation system which is one of the conditions required by the applicant.

AMC 17.69.240 provides guidelines to freestanding signs within freeway corridors. For
purposes of this specific request, AMC 17.69.240 provides the provision for free standing
signs to exceed 250 square feet in advertising space with the approval of a conditional
use permit if within 300 feet of the State Route 99 right-of-way. The proposed sign is
confirmed to meet that requirement and as designed is subject to approval by the
Planning Commission.



Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 3

17.69.050 defines Electronic Message an Board, which states “A sign capable of
displaying words, symbols, figures, or images that can be electronically or mechanically
changed by remote or automatic means. The duration of a message shall be displayed
for a period of no less than 20 of seconds. The transition from one message to another
shall be instantaneous as perceived from the human eye and each electronic message
board shall be complete in itself and shall not continue by fading, scrolling, or other
manner to a subsequent message. No electronic message board shall display animated
messages, including flashing, blinking, fading, rolling, dissolving, or any other effect that
gives the appearance of movement. No electronic message board shall include or emit
an audio message, which is also included as part of the conditions of approval and as a
result the project meets the requirements outlined in item number one of section.

A ground lease or sufficient instrument, such as a rental agreement must be obtained
prior to construction.

With the approval of the Conditional Use Permit the project will be consistent with the
zoning ordinance and general plan with the adoption of Resolution No. 255-24.

Figure 1



Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 4

Description of Surrounding Uses: The parcels immediately to the north of the subject
property include drainage basin. The parcels to the east include vacant shell buildings.
West of the subject property is currently vacant property and the parcels to the south of
the subject property is CALTRANS right-of-way (See Figure 1).

Land Use Designation: The project site has a land use designation of B-P, Business
Park District Overlay (Mixed Use District). This designation is intended to accommodate
a wide range of business uses and may include manufacturing operations within
completely enclosed buildings, associated offices, trade schools, and supporting
childcare and retail activities. The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow
a freestanding two-sided digital billboard to support newly established development in the
area and potentially provide other advertising opportunities for businesses within the
Atwater community. The Project is consistent with the land use designation.

Figure 2



Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 5

e

Zoning: The subject property is zoned Business Park (B-P) (See Figure 3). The purpose
of the B-P zone is to provide a location for Mixed Uses necessary within the City, but not
suited to other commercial districts. Development of a light industrial facility is allowed
through approval of a site plan review but associated signage under this zoning
designation must be approved by the Planning Commission under a Conditional Use
Permit Application.

Figure 3



Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 6

Al
4

1. FISCAL IMPACTS:

No negative fiscal impacts are anticipated with the approval of this project. This item
has been reviewed by the Finance Department.

V. LEGAL REVIEW:

This item has been reviewed by the City Attorney.

V. EXISTING POLICY:

None

VI. INTERDEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION:




Agenda Report — Planning Commission Page 7

The Planning Commission could affirm the staff’'s recommendation or make another
recommendation consistent with the Atwater Municipal Code.

VIl.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

The public will have an opportunity to provide comments on this item prior to Planning
Commission action. The public will have the opportunity to provide comments on this item
prior to Planning Commission action.

VIIl.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the project is categorically
exempt under guideline section 15303, Class 3 “New Construction or Conversion of Small
Structures.

Class 3 consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or
structures.

IX. STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL:

Following adoption of Resolution No. 0255-24, Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100
and Site Plan No. 24-22-0200 and a five-day appeal period, the signed resolutions will be
given to the applicant.

Prepared by: Scott Ruffalo, Planning Technician

Submitted by:

Greg Thompson, Deputy City Manager / Community Development
Director

Attachments:

Resolution No 0255-24

City of Atwater Uniform Development Application
Operational Statement

Site Plan

Elevation

arwnE



PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ATWATER

RESOLUTION NO. PC 0255-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ATWATER
APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO.
24-22-0100 AND SITE PLAN NO. 24-22-0200
LOCATED AT 1883 AT SYCAMORE AVENUE IN
ATWATER (APN: 001-146-011).

WHEREAS, said application was reviewed by the Planning Commission of the City of
Atwater on October 16, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, this project is categorically exempt under California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) guideline 15303, Class 3 “New construction of Conversion of Small Structures;”
and,

WHEREAS, __ person(s) spoke in favor of the Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan,
person(s) spoke in opposition of the Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan, and ___ written
comment(s) have been submitted either in opposition or in favor of the Conditional Use
Permit and Site Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100 and Site Plan 24-22-
0200 would not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the
neighborhood nor have any adverse effect on the community; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the following findings can be made for
Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100 and Site Plan 24-22-0200.

1. That this application proposes to operate a two sided digital billboard.

2. The project is consistent with the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.

3. That the project is exempt under CEQA guideline 15303, Class “3 “New Construction
or Conversion of Small Structures.

That the public hearing for this application has been adequately noticed and advertised.
That the resolution would not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and
welfare of the neighborhood or any adverse effects on the community.

o s



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of
Atwater does hereby approve Conditional Use Permit No. 24-22-0100 and Site Plan
24-22-0200 subiject to the following conditions:

BUILDING

1. A ground lease or sufficient instrument, such as a rental agreement must be
obtained prior to construction before a permit or certificate of occupancy can be
issued.

2. All off-site improvements plans shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer
and shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. The
improvements shall be designed and placed to the City of Atwater standards and
specifications.

3. Permit application and all plan submittals and calculations and all other required
documentation shall be submitted to the Building Division electronically via
CloudPermit. Documents will be routed to proper departments for review and
sent out to third party plan checking services.

4. A plan check fee deposit will be required, prior to processing and Building staff
will contact you with the fee, after they receive the application.

5. Apply for a permit application in person or online via Cloudpermit.

6. If submitting hard copy plans please send Five (5) sets of plans including the
calculations and any supporting materials

7. Five (5) sets of plans including three (3) wet stamped by a registered California
Design.

8. State licensed Professional designer required, unless noted accordingly per the
“Professional Engineers Act” of 2001.

9. Three (3) sets of Energy, Structural, Soils Report, California Green Code
Documents, Special Inspection form (filled out by designer), and any other
applicable calculations/specifications or documents.

10.Building plans shall reflect the most recent California Building Codes (Title 24)
which consist of the Building Code volume 1 & 2, Wind Speed: Risk Category I:
100, Category II: Vuit 110, Vasd 85, Category Il Vuit 115, Vasd 85

a. Wind Exposure: B Urban and Suburban, C in any quadrant for a distance
of more than 600 feet



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 3

b. Seismic Design Category: DO
c. Weathering: Negligible, Winter design temp. 25 degrees F
d. Air Freezing Index: 1500, mean annual temp 60 degrees F

11.Green Code, Electrical Code, Mechanical Code, Plumbing Code, Fire Code
including Appendix C, Appendix D, Appendix |, Appendix J, California Energy
Commission requirements, State and Federal Accessibility requirements, Atwater
Municipal Codes (AMC), requirements from Atwater Fire Department,
Engineering, Planning and Public Works Departments respectively.

12.0nce plans are approved by the City of Atwater the Building Division will contact
the applicant with fee totals and approximate time when plans will be ready for
pick up.

13.Building Permits cards and city approved plans and calculations shall be on site
at all times when an inspection is called in.

14.The construction site shall have an address posted that will be easy for
inspectors, and emergency services to see.

15. All conditions of approval (including conditions from Caltrans) for this project shall
be written by the Developer on all building permit plan check sets, including
tenant improvements, submitted for review and approval. These conditions of
approval shall be on, at all times, all construction plans kept on the project site. It
is the responsibility of the building Developer to ensure that the project contractor
is aware of, and abides by, all conditions of approval. Prior approval from the City
Planner or City Engineer, as applicable, must be received before any changes
are constituted in site design, grading, building design, building colors or
material, etc.

CALTRANS

16. All off-premise commercial advertising displays visible from the National Highway
System are subiject to the provisions of the California Outdoor Advertising Act
(Bus. & Prof. Code Section 5200 et. seq.) and must obtain an ODA Permit from
the Office of Encroachment and Outdoor Advertising Permits (OEOAP) prior to
placement.

ENGINEERING

17.All improvements, public and private, shall be designed and constructed in
accordance with the most recent edition of the City of Atwater Improvement
Standards and Specifications and the most recent edition of the Caltrans
Standard Plans and Specifications, all applicable federal, state, and local



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 4

ordinances, standards, and requirements. Should a conflict arise, the governing
specification shall be determined by the City Engineer.

18.The applicant shall secure and comply with all applicable federal, state and local
licenses, permits, authorizations, conditions, agreements, and orders prior to or
during construction and operation, as appropriate.

19. An encroachment permit shall be required for any construction to be done in the
public right of way or in easements. Please note for any public improvement
required sufficient warranty may be required by the city. The encroachment
permit shall be obtained prior to the start of said work. The permit fees shall be
determined per the current adopted Miscellaneous Fee Schedule.

20.Where the finished grade of the property is in excess of twelve inches (12")
higher or lower than the abutting property or adjacent lots, a retaining wall or
other suitable solution acceptable to the City Engineer shall be required, and any
fence or wall shall be measured from the top of grade on the lower side of the
retaining wall or slope. Retaining walls shall be shown on grading plans, shall be
structurally engineered if over four (4) feet in height (from base of foundation to
top of wall), including surcharge, and will require a separate building permit.

21.The developer shall coordinate all grading and improvements with adjacent
property owners to the satisfaction of the City if required due to an
encroachment. Any grading or drainage onto adjacent properties shall require
written approval of those property owners affected, with said approval provided to
the City Engineer.

22.All broken, cracked or otherwise damaged public improvements, such as curb,
gutter, and sidewalk, shall be saw cut, removed and replaced in accordance with
applicable city standards to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

23.For the proposed on-site improvements and off-site improvements, the developer
shall cause Improvement Plans to be prepared. The plans shall be prepared by a
Licensed Civil Engineer or under his/her direction. The plans shall be prepared
on 24" X 36" plan sheets and to a reasonable scale. The plans shall be in a
format to be approved by the City Engineer and shall show all of the proposed
grading and on-site and off-site improvements for the proposed development.
The title of the plan shall be shown at the top of Sheet No. 1. Sheets shall be
numbered in consecutive order. An index showing the sheets contained within
and as a part of the Site Improvement Plan shall be shown on Sheet 1.

24.Prior to occupancy, the developer shall supply the City with both hardcopy and
electronic (Adobe PDF and AutoCAD file formats) showing plans that reflect the
project as it was built (As-Builts or Record Drawings) to the satisfaction of the
City Engineer. Off-Site Improvement Plans hardcopy shall be on 4-mil minimum
thickness translucent mylar film.



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 5

25. All utility trenches or excavations shall be excavated, backfilled, and compacted
in accordance with applicable City Standards and with any conditions for paving
structural sections included within this resolution.

26. Applicant shall abandon and remove from the site any existing irrigation lines and
other structures found. Lines shall be plugged at the property line with concrete.

27.Developer shall provide for a drainage system capable of handling and
disposing of all surface water originating within the Development and all surface
water that may flow onto the Development from adjacent lands. Said drainage
system shall include any easements and structures required by the City
Engineer to properly handle the drainage and shall be designed so as to prevent
ponding of surface water that would create a public health hazard or nuisance.

28.Developer shall comply with Chapter 13.22 of the Atwater Municipal Code "Storm
Water Management and Discharge Control" and with the City of Atwater Post
Construction Standards Plan.

29.Developer shall process a Post-Construction Stormwater BMP Operation and
Maintenance Plan for review and approval to the satisfaction of the City
Engineer. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the City of Atwater Post-
Construction Standards Plan.

30.0Owner shall execute any agreements identified in the Post-Construction
Standards Plan that pertain to the transfer of ownership and/or long-term
maintenance of stormwater treatment or hydrograph modification BMPs to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer and the Director of the Community Development
Department.

31.Developer shall properly abandon or relocate all utilities as necessary or
required.

32.All underground utilities shall be installed in conformance with existing City
policy including without limitation the City of Atwater Subdivision and Zoning
Ordinances.

33.The installation (if required) of all gas, electric, sewer, and water lines and any
other below-surface utilities is to take place before the construction of any
concrete curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and the surfacing of streets.

34. Applicant shall comply with all requirements of the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District (SJVAPCD).

35.The project shall be in compliance with the most recent Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations.

36.Sight distance requirements at all street intersections shall conform to City



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 6

Standards.

37.The applicant shall submit a geotechnical report together with improvement
plans to the City Engineer for review and approval. The report shall include the
information and be in the form as required by the City Engineer and all
applicable codes.

38.All Conditions of Approval for this project shall be written by the project
developer on all building permit plan check sets submitted for review and
approval. These Conditions of Approval shall be on, at all times, all grading and
construction plans kept on the project site. It is the responsibility of the project
developer to ensure that the project contractor is aware of, and abides by, all
Conditions of Approval. Prior approval from the Community Development
Director must be received before any changes are constituted in site design,
grading, building design, building colors or materials, etc.

PLANNING

39.All signs shall be erected in compliance with the adopted Atwater Municipal
Code Sec. 17.69 standards.

40.All signs shall be properly maintained.

41.All signs shall remain out of the City's recognized clear zones, as defined
in section 17.12.120 and public rights-of-way, and in no way shall any sign
constitute a vehicular traffic hazard by distracting or confusing a motorist.

42.No sign shall be attached to any City Street tree, utility pole, street signal, street
light, street name sign, traffic warning sign, bus shelter, or similar device or
facility.

43.0utdoor advertising signs may be permitted in the M-1 and M-2 zones provided
the signs are located within 300 feet of the Freeway 99 right-of-way.

44 Maximum sign area is 600 square feet and 50 feet in height measured from the
finished grade to the top of the sign.

45.The duration of a message shall be displayed for a period no less than 20
seconds.

46.The transition from one message to another shall be instantaneous as
perceived from the human eye and each electronic message board message
shall be complete in itself and shall not continue by fading, scrolling, or other
manner to a subsequent message.


https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.12ADGECO_17.12.120VICLCOLO

Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 7

47.No electronic message board shall display animated messages, including
flashing, blinking, fading, rolling, dissolving, or any other effect that gives the
appearance of movement.

48.No electronic message board shall include or emit an audio message.

49.The Planning Commission shall retain the right to reconsider Conditional Use
Permit No. 24-22-0100

50.This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals and plans
contained, supporting documents submitted, presentations made to staff, and
Planning Commission as affirmed to by the applicant. Any variation from these
plans, proposals, supporting documents, or presentations is subject to review
and approval prior to implementation.

51.Applicant must provide a Commercial Conditional Use Permit General Plan
Update Fee in accordance with the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule.

52.Applicant must provide an annual Conditional Use Permit Monitoring fee in
accordance with the Miscellaneous Fee Schedule.

53.The applicant or applicant’s successor in interest shall indemnify and defend and
hold harmless the City of Atwater, its agents, officers, and employees from any
and all claims, actions, or proceedings against the City of Atwater, its agents,
officers, and employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the
City of Atwater and its advisory agency, appeal board, or legislative body
concerning this application, which action is brought within applicable statutes of
limitations. The City of Atwater shall promptly notify the applicant or applicant’s
successor in interest of any claim or proceedings and shall cooperate fully in the
defense. If the City fails to do so, the applicant or applicant’s successor in
interest shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify or hold the City
harmless. This condition may be placed on any plans or other documents
pertaining to this application.

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 16th day of October, 2024.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
APPROVED:

DON BORGWARDT,
CHAIRPERSON
ATTEST:



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0255-24 Page 8

GREG THOMPSON,
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER / COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR



City of Atwater

Uniform Development Application
750 Bellevue road

{L\ﬁ }6 S-2U Phone: (209) 357-6342/357-6349 Fax: (209) 357-6348
o-

N W)
o WM-Lle? APPLICATION FORM

| L~ Lob
QU\Z Q \\) f],\)\ -V o Please indicate the types of application requested

) O Administrative Application M’Conditional Use Permit O Tentative Map
CJAmend Planned Development O3 Development Agreement O Time Extension
O Amend Conditional Use Permit O General Plan Amendment (3 variance
O Application for Appeal O Lot Line Adjustment (3 Zone Change
O Architectural Review O Lot Merger J Zoning Text Amendment
O Certificate of Compliance J¢'Site Plan O Other

Describe Proposed Project:

Two Dided T QJ' Yol ™i\\noacad

APPLICANT: R ¥ ~TorAuRrcre< e, PHONE NO: Anq-(1-424
ADDRESS OF APPLICANT: 22\ "Bus{\nesswm\g.oms EMAIL: \-\‘—M'\es\m.mm
PROPERTY OWNER: LR-R holdinas LLC, PHONE NO: 304 - LoR1- 4249

ADDRESS OF PROPERTY OWNER: 2 21 Rusiness Paxk wan  Axuwaker

ASSESSOR'’S PARCEL NUMBER: 6ol ~ $Ylg- Ol

Address/General Location of Property: 1.3 A aennre De,

EXISTING ZONING OF PROPERTY: R uaerness ¥ ok

GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION OF PROPERTY: "L adusttial

Indemnity Statement

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Developer, and Developer’s successor in interest, shall
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, and its agents, elected and appointed officials, officers,
employees, consultants, and volunteers (collectively, “City’s Agents”) from any and all liability
arising out of a claim, action, or proceeding against City, or City’s Agents, to attack, set aside, void,
or annul an approval concerning the project, the Development Agreement, the Conditional Use
Permit, or Subsequent City Approvals. Failure by Developer to indemnify City, when required by




this condition of approval, the Development Agreement, and the Indemnification Agreement, shall
constitute a material breach of the Development Agreement, the Conditional Use Permit, and
Subsequent City Approvals, which shall entitle City to all remedies available under law, including,
but not limited to, specific performance and damages. Failure to indemnify shall constitute
grounds upon which City may rescind its approval of any applicable Conditional Use Permit.
Developer’s failure to indemnify City shall be a waiver by Developer of any right to proceed with
the project, or any portion thereof, and a waiver of Developer’s right to file a claim, action, or
proceeding against City, or City’s Agents, based on City’s rescission or revocation of any
Conditional Use Permit, Subsequent City Approvals, or City’s failure to defend any claim, action,
or proceeding based on Developer’s failure to indemnify City. This condition may be placed on any
plans or other documents pertaining to this application.

| have read, agree and accept the City Indemnity agreement

Signem%

Applicant Date: &Ao—2 7
v indsTvies (ne.

There are no deed restrictions on this land that would prohibit this type of use or development. |
(we)(¢ZwQM'ﬂ$ lr{( depose and say that | am the property owner involved in this
application and the forgoing statements and answers herein contained and the information
herewith submitted are in all respects true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signep—__A L//i/

PROPERTY OWNER  DATE: PROPERTY OWNER  DATE:
Lensdmsuc <2




CITY OF ATWATER UNIFORM DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION CHECKLIST

PROJECT APPLICATION: ALL ITEMS ON THE CHECKLIST MUST BE SUBMITTED
WITH YOUR APPLICATION AND ALL MAPS PROPERLY FOLDED OTHERWISE IT
WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED!

= One (1) completed copy of the combined Development Application form.
= Appropriate Schedule Fees (make checks payable to the City of Atwater).
= One (1) completed and singed copy of Agreement to Pay Processing Costs. (Attached)

= Ten (10) 36x24-inch site plans and five (5) 11x17 reduction of the site plan (See site plan
requirements). Be prepared to submit and electronic copy of the site plan.

= Ten (10) 36x24-inch site plans and five (5) 11x17 reduction of the elevation drawings and
copies of site plan (See site plan requirements). Be prepared to submit and electronic copy of the
site plan.

[ Ten (10) 36x24-inch site plans and five (5) 11x17 reduction of the floor plans and copies of
site plan (See site plan requirements). Be prepared to submit and electronic copy of the site
plan.

O Copies of the Tentative Parcel Map/Tentative Subdivision Map and will require to contain the
information outlined in the Atwater Municipal Code Chapter 16 Section 16.20.020 attached to

this form (See tentative map requirements).

O A letter signed by the property owner authorizing representation by a person or agency other
than him/herself

O Legal description of the entire project site in a metes and bounds format.

O Preliminary title report, chain of title guarantee or equivalent documentation not older than
(6) months which shows any and all easements affecting the project site.

O Ten (10) 18x24-inch site plans and five (5) 8-1/2x11 identifying the proposed Lot Line
Adjustment, Parcel merger or Parcel Unmerge, and all existing features, including but not limited
to easements, utilities, and structures.

O Vicinity Map

O Identification of existing and proposed lot area(s).




Project Checklist Continued

X Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List Disclosure form completed and signed. The

California Government Code requires that applicants for all development projects, excluding

building permits, must check the Comprehensive Hazardous Waste and Substances Statement

list to determine if the site of the proposed project is on the list. This is to be completed as part

of the application materials, The Purpose of this is to provide information to be verified and used
in the environmental Review of the project.

X Operational Statement, which should be printed on its own sheet of paper and have the
following information: Nature of the proposal including all types of uses-sales, processing,
manufacturing etc, detail existing, proposed, and future operations, brief summary of operation
hours to include peak hours, estimated number of personal during peak hours, vicinity map with
highlighted truck routes, proposed method of waste removal and disposal (show on plot plan
trash receptacle), how is the proposed project consistent with nearby uses, uses of all
structures, size of buildings.

Staff Initials - Date received %‘ 14~ Lo s




Site Plan Checklist

= Address and County Assessor’s Parcel Number.
= Name, address and telephone number of applicant, architect and/or engineer.

= Summary legend describing project information including zoning and lot size. For new
construction provide summary of units permitted and proposed building coverage permitted and
proposed off-street parking permitted and proposed, unit square footage breakdown.

= Vicinity Map (showing property location to major roads and major landmarks).
= Scale of plot plan, north arrow, existing property lines and dimensions.

= Names and full widths of all adjacent streets and alleys (indicate location of any medians and
curb cuts).

= Show location of existing and proposed structures and walls (identify existing as a dashed line
and proposed as a solid line).

B |abel the use of all existing and proposed structures and areas

= Indicate setbacks, yard areas, distances between structures (setbacks to be measured from
ultimate property lines if dedication is required).

= Show square footage of the structure(s) and percentage of structure coverage in relationship
to the entire lot.

= Show location and dimensions of adjacent street rights-of-way, property lines, building
setback lines, sidewalks and easements.

O Show off-street parking. Designate open parking, carports, and garages, include dimensions of
parking stalls, maneuvering areas, driveways, specify paving materials; identify all curbing and
wheel stops.

[0 show loading areas, including dimensions and screening
(O Show location of trash enclosures and indicate materials.
= Show location and size of all existing proposed signs, walls, and fences.

O Indicate existing and proposed landscape areas. Preliminary landscaping should include trees
and major planting areas (specific materials, sizes, and numbers will be required on detail plans
following Planning Commission or City Council approval).

(0 Show proposed exterior lighting




Site Plan Checklist Continued

] Show location and general dimensions of any existing irrigation facilities, natural drainage
ways and storm drainage facilities on the site, including any proposed modifications.

0 Show size and species of all trees 6 inches and greater in diameter at 3 feet. Indicate whether
to be removed or retained.

[ Show location of curb cuts on neighboring properties; and, in commercial and industrial
zones, within 300 feet of adjacent properties and properties across the street.

O Location of buildings on adjacent properties (sides and rear) within 25 feet of the project site.

O Include development-phasing schedule (if proposed and/or applicable), including those
portions of the project included in each phase, and estimated start and completion dates.

O Include a table of impervious areas showing pre and post development values.




City of Atwater

HAZARDOUS WASTE AND SUBSTANCE STATEMENT

Phone: (209) 357-6342/357-6349 Fax: (209) 357-6348

This is to determine if the proposed project or any alternatives to the proposed project in this
application are on the lists compiled to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code. The applicant
is required to submit a signed statement, which contains the following information:

NAME OF OWNER: LR~ ¥ um\dmcbq Llc.

ADDRESS: 2.2.\ Bus';ngs,s Qggkmgbé BYusa¥er Co 99300

NAME OF APPLICANT: R & “Tndus¥res Tnc

ADDRESS: 231 Rusinese ”—Pm\e.mn% Dravaler Ce. ABH30\

ADDRESS OF SITE: V882 Sueamore. Aue.  Brunaker Co ARI0|

APN: oot~ 14 ~ O
LOCAL AGENCY: COUNTY OF MERCED

0] NOT ON LIST

0] SPECIFY LIST
REGULATORY IDENTIFICATION NO:

Pursuant to section 65962.5 of the Government Code

DATE OF LIST:

APPLICANT s;GNAUTﬁ/y pate (-2




City of Atwater Processing Agreement

This an agreement for payment of costs for the city of Atwater application processing

To be completed by applicant:

This agreement is by and between the City of Atwater, California, hereafter “City,” and
BK Industeies Tnc hereinafter “applicant”. This is a legally binding agreement. You should ensure
to read all provisions of this agreement.

1.

Applicant agrees to pay all personnel and related direct, indirect, overhead and overtime
costs incurred by City employees and consultants (including engineers, attorneys and
other professionals) incurred by City for review and processing the subject application,
even if the application is withdrawn in writing, not approved, approved subject t
conditions or modified upon approval. Applicant agrees that it shall pay any and all costs
related to the subject application that the City would not have incurred but for the
application. City’s indirect and overhead costs will be applied to the time of City
employees and consultants. All personnel and related direct, indirect, overhead and
overtime rates for City employees and consultants shall be calculated annually by the City
manager. 9

Applicant agrees to make an initial deposit in the amount of $ ©/ oD at the time
this agreement is signed, and subsequent depOosits within 30 days of the date requested
by the City in writing, The city will not pay interest on deposits. Applicant agrees that It
knowingly and voluntarily waives, extends and continues each of the time limits imposed
by California Government Code Section 65943 for the determination of a development
application’s completeness and the time limits imposed by California Government Code
Sections 65950, 65950.1, 65951, and 65952 for the approval or disapproval of
development permits for as many days as the applicant delays making a subsequent
deposit from the date of written notice requesting such additional deposit until the
deposit is received by City, not to exceed 90 days. Failure to make any subsequent
deposits may result in denial of an application for development project or in the decision
by the City to postpone action on the application.

If Applicant does not deposit such requested deposits or make payments on outstanding
invoices within thirty (30 days after the date of the deposit request or invoice, City staff
may cease work on the project until the required deposit or payment is made, subject to
any other provisions of law.

Deposits shall be applied toward the City’s costs in reviewing and processing the
application. City will send monthly statements indicating the charges against the initial
deposit and any subsequent deposits. The City may elect to send statements less
frequently than monthly, if there is only limited monthly activity on the project.




5. Inthe event that the accumulated periodic charges exceed the initial deposit and any
subsequent deposits previously received by City, City will invoice Applicant for the
amount outstanding and may require an additional deposit. Applicant will pay any and all
amounts exceeding the initial and subsequent deposits within thirty (30) days of the date
of the invoice and shall make any additional deposit required by the City.

6. City statements and invoices shall provide summary information indicating the cost for
employees and independent contractors, including direct and indirect charges. Original
invoices from independent contractors (except attorney/client invoices) shall be available
upon request by Applicant, at Applicants additional cost.

7. Applicant shall pay interest on all costs unpaid 30 days after the date of any invoice at the
maximum legal rate, and the City is entitled to recover its costs, including attorney’s fees,
in collecting unpaid accounts.

8. Applicant and owner of property, if not the same, agree to and authorize City to place
lien on the property subject to this application for any and all delinquent fees, Th City
shall remove such a lien once the Applicant has paid all delinquent fees. For purposes of
this section, an invoice amount shall become delinquent when unpaid for 30 days after
the date of the invoice.

9. Any refund of amounts deposited shall be made in the name of the Applicant, to the
address noted above in Section 2. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days.

10. Applicant further agrees that no building permits, Certificate of Occupancy and/or
subdivision Acceptance for the project will be issued until all costs for review and
processing are paid.

11. Applicant shall provide written notice to the City if any of the above information changes.

12. This Agreement shall only be executed by an authorized representative of the Applicant.
The person executing this Agreement represents that he/she has the express authority to
enter into agreements on behalf of the Applicant.

13. This Agreement is not assignable without written consent by the City of Atwater. The City
of Atwater will not consent to assignment of this Agreement until all outstanding costs

have been paid by Applicant.

Applicant: 3R _Tndusiries ~Tnc. Date: R ~0lg- 2OIY
Print Name and Title:mmwm@ﬂée'—/
Owner: LR -X ddioas L c Date: oR- O(n-2024

Print Name and Title: W 0!/‘”6"2—-

City of Atw
RS B ade

e Deon ng'ﬂ\.o , ?Q:n}h w\,,; & B

Print Name and Title:




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

750 Bellevue road

Phone: (209) 357-6342/357-6349 Fax: (209) 357-6348
Application: Ry “Tindustries Tve APN: Gol-\4Uie -

As Property Owner, | hereby acknowledge grading, land clearing, construction or any action that
would alter the existing condition of the project site until approval of the final application is
granted by the City of Atwater. | understand that alteration of the project site prior to approval
will impact the City of Atwater’s ability to review the project and could resuit in higher prices and
require additional mitigation measures/conditions of approval to be applied or result in the
denial of the application.

My agent/applicant has been instructed the importance of maintaining the current condition of
the project site. The exception to the above-mentioned statement is an approval by the Planning
department upon a written request.

Signed ' Date




City of Atwater
750 Bellevue Rd.
Atwater, CA 95301

Tuesday, August 6, 2024

Attention: Planning Department: Scott Ruffalo
RE: Digital Billboard at 1883 Sycamore Ave.

Operational Statement

|, Brad Kessler, the president of BK Industries Inc. & LR-K Holding LLC, am the
owner of the vacant property located at: 001-146-011. This property is currently zoned
(BP) which allows for this proposed digital billboard.

| am proposing to construct a two sided digital billboard on 1883 Sycamore Ave.
This billboard will provide the same cohesive design similar to the 6 Acres Digital
Billboard which ties together nicely for this corridor of Atwater.

The hours of operation of this digital billboard will be 24 hours a day and 7 days
a week. We plan for our digital billboard to be the same size as the 3 existing billboards
within the area. Our double sided structure will offer advertising space on both
Northbound Hwy 99 and Southbound Hwy 99.

Attached:

- The proposed design drawings
- Aerial view pictures of existing property

This project will not interfere with any of the activities/businesses within the
area. This digital billboard will cultivate more jobs and revenue for the community of
Atwater.

Thank you for your consideration

Brad Kessler
7/,7;’7 .




GENERAL NOTES:

This building complies with TITLE 24 and the following model codes:

2022 California Building Codes (CBC)
2022 California Plumbing Codes (CPC)
2022 California Mechanical Codes
2022 California Fire Codes (CFC)
2022 California Electrical Codes

2022 California Energy Code

2022 California Green Building Code

SCOPE OF WORK:

- PROPOSED STEEL STRUCTURE FOR A NEW DIGITAL BILLBOARD
- ELECTRICAL SERVICE

- DIGITAL BILLBOARDS SCREENS INSTALLATION BY OTHERS

BUILDING MATERIALS
1. FOOTING: CONCRETE PIER FOOTING
2. STEEL STRUCTURE GRADE 500

SUMMARY LEGEND:

BK INDUSTRIES INC. PROPOSES TO BUILD A TOWER TO SUPPORT
A ELECTRONIC BILLBOARD LOCATED AT THE CITY OF ATWATER, AT
THE BUSINESS PARK ZONING , 1883 SYCAMORE AVE. ATWATER, CA
95301. APN 001-146-011-00, CREATING AN EASEMENT OF 20 FEET
WIDE BY 50 FEET LONG, AREA OF 1,000 SQUARE FEET ADDRESSED
JUST FOR THE BILLBOARD PURPOSE.

BK INDUSTRIES INC. WILL RESPONSIBLE OF THE MAINTENANCE
OF THIS SITE AND BILLBOARD SYSTEM.

OCCUPANCY & BUILDING SUMMARY:

OCCUPANCY GROUPS: U

TYPE CONSTRUCTION: -8

SPLINLERS: N/A

STORIES: 1

AREA OF WORK: 1000 SF

DESIGN CRITERIA:

2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE

WIND: 95 MPH 3 sec GUST, EXPOSURE CATEGORY C, RISK CATEGORY |l

SEISMIC: Ss = 0.586, S1 =0.242, Sds = 0.520, Sd! = 0.295,
RISK CATEGORY II, SITE CLASS D, SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY D,

Cs =0.451, Cs asd = 0.322
LIVELOAD: 20 psf ROOF LIVE LOAD (REDUCIBLE)

SPECIAL INSPECTION REQUIRED:

YES NO
INSPECT BOLTS TO BE INSTALLED IN CONCRETE PRIOR TO AND DURING
X PLACEMENT OF CONCRETE WHERE ALLOWABLE LOADS HAVE BEEN
INCREASED PER IBC, CBC 1911.5
SHOP AND FIELD STRUCTURAL WELDING
X CBC 1704.3.1

INSPECTION OF HIGH-STRENGTH BOLTING:
X a. Bearing-type connections.

b. Slip-critical connections.

PER CBC 1704.3.3

CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

1. VICINITY MAP

NTS

Malibu Honey
Ledger Panel 6 in. x 6 in. Textured Quartzite Wall Tile

r
v

I
d /
o -

j o D ETIY S
AN &

>
Tl -
A [ n

1

:‘1 FEZE— r_pf'\:w'\-e“z-tgrg -
".‘;‘:'ﬁu‘ﬁ R | "u-‘.\ A
- :’,};n-x - f‘. 4
| 49
=
\ "

8

JE—
i

o i A i
£ :
ol

L AT
M ne— . La-_..
SycamorefAve

€ T N

JOB SITE

X PER CBC 1705.3 Specifications
Dimensions
Approxim Tile Siz X
ALL INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY NRCS WILL BE DONE BY: ppro a’_te e Size 6x6 .
NATS Product Thickness (mm) 12.7 mm =0.5in.
NORTH AMERICAN TECHNICAL SERVICES Product Width (in.) 6in
4713 ENTERPRISE WAY #4 S . . -
uggested Grout Line Size No Grout Required
MODESTO, CA 95356 gg q
JUSTIN HASLEY AWS#0004191 Details _
Application Location Wall
CONDITIONS: Color Family Gold
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE VERIFICATION OF ALL DIMENSIONS, Color/Finish Malibu Hone
GRADES AND OTHER JOB SITE CONDITIONS AND SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE . . . : y _ _
DESIGNER OR ENGINEER FOR CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. Commercial / Residential Commercial / Residential
CONCRETE DCOF Rating Not Tested
1. 1904.1 Structural Concrete Edge_ Type Flat
Structural concrete shall conform to the durability requirements of ACI 318.2. Flooring Look Stone Look
2. ALL PLACEMENT OF CONCRETE SHALL MEET REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT CBC. Indoor/Outdoor Indoor, Outdoor
3.  ALL SURFACES TO RECEIVE CONCRETE SHALL BE WATERED DOWN 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE . .
OF POURING CONCRETE. Mosaic Pat’fern . Geometric
4.  ALL CONCRETE SURFACES SHALL BE PROTECTED AND CURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED Product Height (in.) 6
BUILDING PRACTICES. Tile Features
5. WHERE AREA CONCRETE SLAB EXCEEDS 500 SQUARE FEET, PROVIDE EXPANSION CONTROL JOINTS, ONLY
ON NEW CONSTRUGTIONS. Use Mortar Sakrete Stone Veneer Mortar
SPECIFICATIONS:
CONCRETE: 3000 PSI AT 28 DAYS. TYPE Il PCC.
REINFORCING: 1901.2 Plain and Reinforced Concrete

Structural concrete shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements of this
chapter and ACI 318 as amended in Section 1905 of this code. STRUCTURAL STEEL:

CBC 2022 Section 2205 Structural Steel

2205.1 General. The design, fabrication and erection of structural steel elements in buildings,
structures and portions thereof shall be in accordance with AISC 360.

CONCRETE NOTE: Concrete above 2500 psi required special inspection. See Special Inspection Form Attached:
Table 1705.3 - Concrete Construction Item "F".

List soil parameter capacities for Passive and Bearing Pressure:
- 2000 psf Vertical Pressure
- Lateral Bearing Pressure Value Taken as per Table 1808.2 is 150 psf/ft below natural grade.
- Lateral Force resisting System used for design: Modification Factor R=3.5 Used for Seismic Load Generation
Lateral Force Resisting System Used for desing is Steel Ordinary Moment Frame.

CONSTRUCTION MUST MEET ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL DEPARTMENT REGULATIONS.

INDEX -

S.1  TITLE SHEET - PROJECT DATA - VICINITY MAP - CODE - FOUNDATION - BILLBOARD SCREEN SPEC.
I

S.1.2 STRUCTURAL GENERAL NOTES

S.2 SITE PLAN

S.3 BILLBOARD DESIGN

S.4 "ATWATER" SIGN FRAME DETAIL

S.5 CONCRETE MASONRY WALL DETAILS

SYCAMORE AVE,
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 SYCAMORE AVE.
ATWATER, CA 95301
APN 001-146-011

PROPERTY OWNER & BUILDING PERMIT APPLICANT:
LR-K' HOLDINGS LLC

BRAD KESSLER, PRESIDENT

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY

ATWATER, CA 95301

209.631.4247

All adVISION LED sign come with:
Sign Package Includes -

Dedicated Laptop

Premium 14in Dedicated Laptop:

Core i5-6300U 2.4GHz, 8GB DDR4 SDRAM,

256GB 55D Solid State, Wifi and Ethernet Network Connectivity, Windows 10 Pro 64bitpreconfigured for
communication to your LED sign. Optimized settings and content including Clip Art Images and
animation templates. Content Creation software comes preloaded for easy-to-us2 designing on
advertising slides.

On-Board Controller
On-Board High Speed Processor All Solid state Components. 1.5 GHz eight-core processor
Support for H.265 4K high-definition video hardware decoding playback
Support for 1080P video hardware decoding
2 GB operating memory
2 GB on-board internal storage space with 4 GB available for users
Controller offers 650,000 pixel loading capacity, synchronous or asynchronous playing mode, powerful
processing capability, omnidirectional control plan, dual-Wi-Fi mode, supports 4G module (not
included), redundant backup, and redundant backup.

Wireless

High performance high data rate Dual Polarization long range Antenna featuring the latest Wireless N
specification for worry free communication with our tech dept.

Features a two mile line - of - site coverage at speeds up to mbps.

ADV Software

Comes Pre-Loaded With Our Centent Creation Software That Will
Workin Conjunction With The Sign Performance Software.This
Software Will Allow You To Edit Movies,Pictures And Group
Them Together For A Dynamic Screen Presentation. Comes With
5000 Fonts 800

Still And 1800 Video Backgrounds + 2000 Clip Art Images
Allowing For Immediate Content Creation.

Installation Brackets
Installation brackets 3" x 3" x 1/4" angle iron are pre-mounted to rear of sign for easy installation

Warranty
5 Year Parts Warranty

Tech Support

Lifetime Tech Support:Qur technicians are
available 24/7 to solve any technical
issues that may arise

Aaron Soares
www.advisionledsigns.com
Toll Free: 877-532-5593 extit1
Direct: 209-613-9655
Fax: 209-844-0333

REVISION DATE BY

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

TITLE SHEET
PROJECT DATA
VICINITY MAP
BILLBOARD SPEC.

BILLBOARD SCREEN SPEC.

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

PRINTED

DATE : 07-29-2024
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown

DRAWN : E.E. MORAN

JOB : 2023-228

SHEET #:

S.1

OF SHEETS



Enrique E. Moran
Text Box
INDUSTRIES

Enrique E. Moran
Text Box
INDUSTRIES


General

A. Construction: All work shall be performed in accordance with the applicable
sections of the California Building Code (CBC) 2022 Edition and the additional
publications listed herein. The contractor shall be responsible for maintaining the
job site in a safe condition and employing OSHA approved construction practices
performed in a workmanlike manner. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the
design of shoring, formwork and all other temporary construction structures. Care
must be taken during construction not to exceed the design live load capacity of
the structure (see loading values below). Construction materials shall be spread
out to avoid overloading individual members. Periodic jobsite visits by the Owner
and/or Engineer do not constitute review or approval of construction techniques
put are intended solely for the purpose of checking general compliance of the
work with the project construction documents.

B. The Drawings: These drawings shall be read and coordinated with all other
contract drawings including vendor drawings and subcontractor shop drawings.
Specific dimensions, details and notes shall take precedence over General Notes,
typical details, minimum code values or scaled information on plans or sections.
tems not specifically detailed shall generally follow other similar details.
Discrepencies, conflicts and/or unclear conditions shall be brought to the attention
of the Owner and/or Engineer immediately.

C. Shop Drawing Review: Review of shop drawings by the Owner and/or Engineer is
for general compliance with the information given in the contract documents. The
Contractor will remain responsible for errors of detailing, fabrication, and for the
correct fitting of all structural members including coordination with other trades.
Any proposed detail change shall be clearly identified on the shop drawings with
appropriate supporting documentation included for proper evaluation of the change.

Design Loads
Structural design is based on the 2022 Edition of the California Building Code

utilizing the following basic load values:
Live Loads: Roof Live Load — 20 psf (reducible)

Seismic: Soil Site Class — D
Importance Factor — 1.0
Seismic Design Category — D
Ss = 0.727, S1 = 0.281, Sds = 0.590, Sd1 = 0.393
Cs = 0.219, Cs (ASD) = 0.157

Wind: 95 mph, 3—sec. Gust Wind Speed
Exposure Category — C

Special Inspection

Structural testing and inspection of work performed under this contract shall be
performed in accordance with CBC Chapter 17. Special Inspection shall be provided
for the following types of work:

1. Concrete: The structural design of this project is based on concrete having a
compressive strength (f'¢c) of 2500 psi and therfore, special inspection is not
required. (Test specimens shall be taken and full time inspection provided, for the
placement of all (Type A) concrete (see Concrete Notes). Reinforcing steel shall be
inspected prior to concrete placement.)

2. Bolts Installed in Concrete: Full time inspection required when stress increases
permitted by CBC Section 1908.5 are utilized. See structural calculations.

3. Prestressing Tendons: Full time inspection required during stressing and grouting
of prestressing tendons.

4. Structural Welding: Full time inspection shall be provided during all field welding
operations. Periodic inspection procedures may be used for all welding produced in

an approved fabricator’'s shop, metal deck welding, welded studs and light gage
metal framing performed in the field. Final pass inspection shall be provided for oll

fillet welds 5/16” or smaller. Full time inspection shall be provided for all welding
performed in a non—approved fabrication shop and welding of reinforcing steel.

9. High Strength Bolting: Periodic special inspection shall be provided for all high
strength bolts (designated HSMB on the drawings).

6. Structural Masonry: Provide periodic special inspection of all masonry work
during grouting operations, the taking of test somples and prisms, the start of
CMU lay—up, the placement of reinforcing and the completed grout space and wall
cleanouts per CBC Section 1705.4.

Footnote: Special inspection is also required for Reinforcing Gypsum Concrete;
Insulating Concrete Fill; Spray Applied Fire Proofing; Piers, Drilled Piers and
Caissons; Shotcrete; Special Grading; Smoke Control System and Special Cases.

Foundation

A. Design Values: Foundation design values are based on the
soil design values given in the report by N.A.T.S. (Report #23—263G, dated
5/5/2023 and are as follows:

Allowable Soil Bearing Pressure . . . . . . . .. 2000 psf
Lateral Bearing Pressure . . . . . . .. .. ... ... 100 psf/ft
Lateral Sliding Resistance Coefficient . . . . 0.25

Active Soil Pressure . . . . . . . .. ... ... 130 pcf

B. Site Preparation:

1. Slabs on grade: Minimum site preparation under slabs on grade
shall consist of scarifying and recompacting the top 12 inches
of surface soils within, and to a minimum of 5 feet beyond the
proposed building area.) The minimum compaction for these
areas is 90%.

2. Footings: The bottoms of all footings shall be founded in
undisturbed native soil or approved Engineered Fill having a
minimum compaction value of 95%. All footings shall be
inspected by the Project Engineer, or a Soils Engineer of his
choice, prior to placement of any concrete.

3. AC Paved Areas: The top 12 inches of subgrade in all areas
to be paved shall be compacted to 95%. Scarify and recompact
existing site soils when present compaction is below 95%.

4. Other Areas: All other areas of the site requiring fill or
scarification shall be recompacted to 90%.

5. Engineered Fill: Any fill soil required to bring the site
up to grade should consist of a granular, non—expansive
soil approved by the Owner and/or Geotechnical Engineer.
Engineered Fill shall be placed in thin horizontal layers, a maximum
of 6 inches in loose thickness, and compacted to the
minimum values noted above. All areas to recieve fill
shall be prepared by stripping all vegetation from the surface,
benching or regarding the area to a maximum 1:10 horizontal
surface and scarifying the top 8 inches prior to placing
Engineered Fill. If any soft or loose pockets of soil are found
in the stripping or scarifying process, these soils should be
over excavated and recompacted to the requirements for
Engineered Fill.

C. Compaction & Testing:
1. Compaction percentage shall be the maximum dry

density as determined by the ASTM D—1557 test
procedure.

Foundation (cont’d.)

C. Compaction & Testing:

2. The placement of all Engineered Fill shall be inspected, (supervised),
and the compaction tested, by North American Technical Service.
The testing agency will be hired by the Owner and all initial compaction
testing will be paid by the owner. Any retesting of failed compaction tests will
be billed to the Contractor.

3. Copies of the compaction reports will be supplied to Building
Department or Building Inspector at or prior to the foundation
inspection.

Concrete

A. General: All concrete work shall be performed in accordance with the latest
edition of the ACI Manual of Concrete Practice and the C.B.C.

B. Reinforcing Materials:
1. Deformed ASTM A615, Grade 60
2. Welded Wire Fabric, ASTM A185

C. Concrete Strength: Footings and slabs on grade.

psi @ 28 Days Min. Cem. Max. W/C Ratio Max. Agg. Max. Slump
2500 5.3 sks/yd 0.50 3/4" 4"
3000 6.0 sks/yd 0.52 1" 4"

D. Admixtures: Only as approved by the Engineer.

E. Welding: All wleding of reinforcing steel should be avoided but where
absolutely necessary welding shall be with low hydrogen electrodes in strict
accordance with the latest reccomendations of the Amerocan Welding Society
(AWS D1.4).

E. Lap Splices: Minimum 30 bar diameters or 1'—6" (whichever is greater) and
as detailed on the drawings.

G. Cover to bars: Unless otherwise shown or noted, cover to reinforcing bars
shall be as stated in ACI318 Section 7.7 and modified by C.B.C. Section 1905.

H. Concrete Curing: Keep ocncrete slabs continuously wet for 7 days or use
membrane curing as approved by the Engineer.

. Form Removal: Side forms of footings and slabs on grade, minimum 2 days.

J. Vibration: Vibrate all concrete in place with a mechanical vibrator used by
experienced personnel.

K. Testing: When requested by the owner, testing of concrete strength shall be
in accordance with AClI 301, Chapter 16.

Masonry

A. Materials:

1. Portland Cement: ASTM C150 Type | or Il, low alkali.

Aggregate: Mortar Sand — ASTM C144; Grout Sand — ASTM C404.

Hydrated Lime: ASTM C207, Type S.

Admixtures: Only as approved by the Engineer.

Concrete Block Masonry Units: Grade A units in accordance with
ASTM C90 Grade S—1 with maximum .06% linear shrinkage when
tested in accordance with C.M.A. Standards.

Hollow Concrete Masonry Units: ASTM C90, Type |, Grade N
Nominal face dimensions: 8 inches high and 16 inches long.
Maximum linear drying shrinkage shall not exceed .06% when
tested in accordance with ASTM C426. Submit samples of all
masonry units used for approval.

7. Reinforcing materials: ASTM A615 Grade 40 deformed bars.

Uk wn

o

B. Mortar:
1. Strength: Type S.
2. Composition: 1 part Portland Cement, 1/2 part maximum lime
putty or hydrated lime, damp loose sand not less than 2 1/4
nor more than 3 times the sum of the cement and lime used.

C. Grout:
1. Strength: 1250 psi @ 7 days and 2000 psi @ 28 days.
Minimum 6 sacks cement/yard.
2. Use standard low lift grouting procedures. Grout all cells
solid.
3. Concrete block masonry units shall be dry and clean before
grouting operation.

D. Tooled Joints:
1. Exposed joints — Tooled slightly concave.
2. Unexposed joints — Tooled flush.
3. Use running bond pattern throughout.

E. Quality Control and Testing:
1. Inspection: All masonry construction shall have full time
inspection by a qualified masonry inspector.
2. Submittals: Submit material samples, certificates and
test reports as required by the project specifications.

Structural Steel

A. General: All work shall be performed in accordance with the
latest provisions of the CBC, AISC Specifications, AWS
Standard Code D1.1, ans ASTM Standards noted below.
Field verify dimensions prior to fabrication.

B. Materials:

Structural steel wide flange members: ASTM A572.

All other structural steel shapes, plates and bars:
ASTM A36

Structural tubing: ASTM AS500, Grade B.

Structural Pipe: ASTM A53, Grade B.

High Strength Bolts and Nuts: ASTM A325-N (where
indicated on the drawings H.S.M.B.).

Bolts, Nuts and Washers: ASTM A307 (typical uless
H.S.M.B. is noted).

7. Welding Materials: AWS D1.1 with E70XX electrodes —
typ as required for materials being welded.

Expansion Bolts: "Hilti” Kwik Bolt, or approved system.

Epoxy Anchors: "Hilti” HIT Fastening System, installed
per manufacturer’s specifications, based on the materials
being connected to.

oL NS

12

© m

C. Fabrication:

1. All welding to be performed by certified welders.

2. Shop fabricate to the greatest extent possible.

3. Shop prime all steel members except those specified to
be galvanized. Do not prime those surfaces to be welded
or imbedded in concrete.

4. Field prime and paint all field welded surfaces.

D. Shop Drawings:
1. Submit shop drawings for all structural steel members to
the Engineer for review.

E. Testing and Inspection:

1. All high strength bolted connections. All connections are
bearing type connections unless noted otherwise and are
to be tightened using the "turn of the nut method”.

2. All field welding and shop welding not done in an I.C.C.
approved fabrication shop.

3. Final pass inspection is required on all fillet welds 5/16”
or less in size.

4. All epoxy anchor installations.

Wood

A. Materials: Unless noted otherwise all solid sawn lumber shall be
grade marked by an ICC approved agency, be free—of—heart—
center (FOHC) where noted and meet the following minimum grades:
1. 2x studs, plates and sills in plywood shear walls and bearing
walls: DF#2.
2. All other non—bearing interior partition walls:
DF construction or stud grade.
3. All 2x and 4x structural framing members: DF#1.
4. All 4x and 6x posts and columns: DF#1, FOHC.
5. All other 6x (or larger) framing members: DF#1, FOHC.
6. Foundation lumber: Pressure treated DF#2 or foundation grade
redwood.
7. Plywood: Each panel shall be identified with the grade
trademark of the APA.

B. Glued Laminated Beams: All glued laminated beams shall be
fabricated and inspected in conformance with CBC Chapter
23 and AITC.
1. Combination Symbol: 24F—V8 for all continuous members
24F—-V4 for simple span members
2. Minimum Stresses: Bending — 2400 psi tension face
1200 compression face
Comp. perp. to grain — 560 psi
Horiz. Shear — 165 psi
Modulus of Elasticity — 1800 ksi
3. Appearence: Architectual grade for exposed members
Industrial grade for all non exposed members
4, Species: All DF material.
5. Camber: As noted on drawings.
6. Inspection certificates: Provide AITC certificate of inspection
(or equivalent) for each lot of beams, fabricated or delivered
together, to the engineer prior to erection.

C. Preservative Treatment: All wood sills, plates, sleepers, nailers
and ledgers in direct contact with concrete or masonry foundations,
or supported on concrete slabs in direct contact with earth shall
be preservative treated wood or foundation grade redwood. Wood
joists or structural wood floors within 18 inches of earth, or
wood girders within 12 inches of earth shall also be treated.
Wood members exposed to the weather or to environments where
the . Preservative treatment shall be in conformance with C.B.C.
Section 2303.1.8 and applicable sections of the AWPA & AWPB codes.

D. Machine Bolts and Lag Bolts:

1. Bolts and Nuts: ASTM A307.

2. Washers: Standard cut washers shall be furnished at each
bolt head and nut placed next to wood. Provide Malleable Iron
Washers (MIW) where indicated on the drawings.

3. Bolt Holes: Maximum 1/16” larger than the bolts accurately
located. Oversize or slotted holes are not permitted unless
specifically noted on the drawings.

4. Lag Bolts: Lead hole for threaded portion shall be 75% of the
shank diameter with a depth equal to the length of bolt and
lead hole for unthreaded portion shall be equal diameter and
length of the shank.

E. Nailed Joints: Use common nails or spikes uless otherwise noted.
For minimum refer to the Typical Nailing Schedule.

F. Misc. Metal Connectors: Unless otherwise noted, all metal connectors
used for connecting structural wood shall have .C.C. approval and
be products manufactured by the Simpson Strong Tie Co., Inc.
(SIMP). All connectors shall be installed in strict conformance with
the manufacturer’s specificationsutilizing the size and quantity of
Simpson connectors specified in the most recently published
catalog. No substitutions will be made unless approved by the
Engineer.

Typical Nailing Schedule

Unless otherwise shown or noted, general nailing requirements shall
comply with C.B.C. Chapter 23, Table 2304.10.2 and the following

additional minimum requirements. The more stringent requirements
shall eake precedence.

A. General:
1. Typically use 16d nails for connecting 2" thick members and
8d nails for connecting 1" thick members with a minimum of 2
nails at each joint.
2. Sub—bore when nails tend to split wood. Sub—bore for 20d and
larger nails, drill diameter shall be 0.75 x nail shank diameter.

B. Studs and Posts: (Full height between sill and top plate)
1. Studs to sill or top plate — (2) 16d end nail or (2) 10d toenail
to each side.
2. 4x posts to sill — "Simpson” A33 ea. side ea. end.
3. Bx posts to sill — "Simpson” A35 ea. side ea. end.
4. Adjacent studs and posts — 16d @ 16".

5. Stud wall blocking — (2) 16d end nail or (3) 10d toenail to
each end.

C. Double Top Plate: (minimum 6—0" laps)
1. Plate to plate — 16d @ 16" face nail
2. @ all intersections — (3) 16d and lap plates

3. @ typical splices — minimum (8) 16d face nails ea. side
of splice.

D. Joists/Trusses/Rafters:
1. Joist to top plate or beam — (2) 10d toenail ea. side or
framing clips where
indicated.
2. Rim joist to top plate— 10d toendail @ 8” o.c.
3. Joist lap over interior bearing — Min. 12" lap with (4) 16d.
4. Trusses or rafter to top plate — .

E. Joist blocking: (Min. 2x blkg. Full depth of joist — typical @
all supports and as indicated on drawings.)
1. Blocking to joist (2 x 4 thru 2 x 8) — (2) 16d end nail or
(3) 10d toenail ea. end.
2. Blocking to joist (2 x 10 & up) — (3) 16d end nail or (4)
10d toenail ea. end.
3. Blocking to plate — (3) 10d toenail.

F. Headers and Beams: 4x and 6x members

1. Beam to top of post — "Simpson” AC seris post caps
unless oterwise noted.
2. Beam to side of post — "Simpson” HH series.

3. Built—up beam (2x members) — 16d @ 16” o.c. ea.
face — top & bottom.

G. Floor and roof decking:
1. 2 x 4 or 2 x 6 decking — (2) 16d blind and face nail @
ed. bearing.
2. 3 x 6 decking — (2) 20d face nail @ ea. bearing and
8d toenaqil @ 24" thru tongue.

Anchors for concrete and Masonry

A. General:
1. Install all specified anchors per manufacturer’s specifications.
2. All concrete and masonry anchors other than cast in place
anchor bolts shall be specified as Simpson anchors. See
drawings for size and type of anchors.
3. Any substitution of anchors other than those specified on the
drawings shall be approved in writing by the Engineer.

B. Materials
1. Bolts and Studs: ASTM A307; ASTM A449 where
"high strength” is indicated on the drawings.
. Carbon and Alloy Steel Washers: ASTM AS563.
Carbon Steel Washers: ASTM F436.
. Carbon Steel Threaded Rod: ASTM A36; or ASTM A193
Grade B7.
. Wedge Anchors: ASTM A510; or ASTM A108.
. Stainless Steel Bolts, Hex Cap Screws’ and Studs: ASTM
F593.
. Stainless Steel Nuts: ASTM F594.
. Zinc Plating: ASTM B633.
. Hot—Dip Galvalnizing: ASTM A153.
10. Reinforcing Dowels: ASTM A615.

©ON U AUN

C. Installation
1. Cast—In—Place Bolts: Use templates to locate bolts accurately
and securely

in formwork.

2. Drilled=In Anchors:

A. Drill holes with rotary impact hammer drills using carbide—
tipped bits and core drills using diamond core bits. Drill
bits shall be of diameters as specified by the anchor
manufacturer. Unless otherwise shown on the Drawings,
all holes shall be drilled perpendicular to the concrete
surface.

i. Cored Holes: Where anchors are to be installed in
cored holes, use core bits with matched tolerances
as specified by the manufacturer. HIT HY-150 and
HIT ICE shall not be installed in core drilled holes.

ii. Embedded Items: Identify position of reinforcing
steel and other embedded items prior to drilling holes
for anchors. Exercise care in coring or drilling to
avoid damaging existing reinforcing or embedded
items. Notify the Engineer if reinforcing steel or other
embedded iterns are encountered during drilling.

Take precautions as necessary to avoid damaging
prestressing tendons, electrical and
telecommunications conduit, and gas lines.

iii. Base Material Strength: Unless otherwise

specified, do not drill holes in concrete or
masonry until concrete, mortar, or grout has
achieved full design strength.

B. Perform anchor installation in accordance with
manufacturer instructions.

C. Wedge Anchors, Heavy—Duty Sleeve Anchors, and
Undercut Anchors: Protect threads from damage
during anchor installation. Heavy—duty sleeve anchors
shall be installed with sleeve fully engaged in part to
be fastened. Set anchors to manufacturer’s
recommended torque, using a torque wrench.

Following attainment of 10% of the specified torque,
100% of the specified torque shall be reached within
7 or fewer complete turns of the nut. If the
specified torque is not achieved within the required
number of turns, the anchor shall be removed and
replaced unless otherwise directed by the Engineer.

D. Adhesive Anchors: Clean all holes per manufacturer
instructions to remove loose material and drilling dust
prior to installation of adhesive. Holes may be dry, damp

or wet. Inject adhesive into holes proceeding from the

bottom of the hole and progressing toward the surface in
such a manner as to avoid introduction of air pockets in the
adhesive. Follow manufacturer recommendations to ensure
proper mixing of adhesive components. Sufficient

adhesive shall be injected in the hole to ensure

that the annular gap is filled to the surface.

Remove excess adhesive from the surface. Shim

anchors with suitable device to center the anchor in

the hole. Do not disturb or load anchors before

manufacturer specified cure time has elapsed.

E. Capsule Anchors: Perform drilling and setting
operations in accordance with manufacturer
instructions. Clean all holes to remove loose
material and drilling dust prior to installation of
adhesive. Remove water from drilled holes in such
a manner as to achieve a surface dry condition.
Capsule anchors shall be installed with equipment
conforming to manufacturer recommendations. Do
not disturb or load anchors before manufacturer
specified cure time has elapsed. Observe
manufacturer recommendations with respect to
installation temperatures for cartridge injection
adhesive anchors and capsule anchors.

Light Gage Steel Framing Members

A. General:

1. All light gage steel studs, track, joists, trusses,
bridging and related accessories are as indicated
on the drawings and specified herein.

2. All light gage steel studs, track, joists, trusses
and bridging and shall be manufactured by a member
of the Steel Stud Manufacturer’s Association and
are listed in I.C.C. Report ESR—-3064.

B. Standards
1. All work shall meet the requirements of the following
standards:
a. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) "Design

of Cold Formed Steel Structural Members”, $100—-16/52—20.

b. American Welding Society (AWS) D1.3—08
"Structural Welding Code — Sheet Steel.”

c. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)

d. American Institute for Steel Construction (AISC)
"Manual of Steel Construction,” 360—16.

e. All pertinent Federal, State and Local codes.

2. The stringent requireemnts shall govern in conflicts
betweeen specified codes and standards.

Light Gage Steel Framing Members

C. Materials

1. Galvinized Material.

a. All galvanized studs and joists shall be formed
from steel that corresponds to the minimum
requirements of 2016 A.l.S.l. standards.

b. All galvinized studs, joists track, bridging and
accessories shall be formed with steel having a
galvinized coating meeting the requirements of
ASTM AB53.

2. Properties:

The physical and structural properties listed by
the Steel Stud Manufacturer’s Assocaiation and
thier member companies shall be considered
the minimum permitted for all framing members.
All light gage steel studs, track, joists, trusses,
bridging and related accessories shall be formed
from steel having fy = 33,000 psi. unless otherwise
noted on drawings or calculations.

3. Substitutions
Any substitutions must be approved in writing by
the Engineer of Record.

D. Fabrication
1. Framing components may preassembled into panels
prior to erecting. Prefabricated panels shall be square,
with components attached in @ manner as to prevent
racking.
2. All framing components shall be cut squarely for
attachment to perpendicular members, or as
required for an angular fit against abutting members.
Members shall be held positively in place until
properly fastened.
3. Provide insulation equal to that specified elsewhere
in all double jamb studs and double header members.
which will not be accessible to the insulation
contractor.
4. Axially Loaded Studs
a. Studs shall have full bearing against inside track web
(1/16” max. gap), prior to stud and track attachment.
b. Splices in axially loades studs shall not be permitted.
5. Fasteners
a. Fastening of components shall be made with self
tapping screws or welding of sufficient size to
insure the strength of the connection.
b. Welds to be performed by qualified welders in
accordance with Section 6 of the American
Welding Society's "Structural Welding Code —
Sheet Metal” (AWS D1.3—81). All welds shall
be touched up with zinc paint.

E. Erection
1. Walls:

a. Erect framing and panels plumb, level and square
in strict accordance with approved shop drawings.

b. Handling and lifting of prefabricated panels shall
be done as to not cause distortion in any member.

c. Track shall be securely anchored to the supporting
structure as shown on the erection drawings. Concrete
anchors shall be installed after full compressive
strength has been acheived.

d. All track butt joints, abutting pieces of track shall
be securely anchored to a common structural
element, or they shall be butt welded or spaiced
together.

e. Studs shall be plumbed, aligned and securely
attached to the flange or webs of both upper and
lower tracks.

f. Jack studs or cripples shall be installed below
window sills, above window and door heads, at
free standing stair rails and elsewhere to furnish
support and shall be securely attached to
supporting members.

g. Wall stud bridging shall be attached in a
manner to prevent stud rotation. Bridging

rows shall be spaced according to SSMA recomendations.

h. Framed wall openings shall include headers and
supporting studs as shown on the plans.

i. Temporary bracing shall be provided until erection is
completed.

j. Provide stud walls at locations indicated on plans as
"shear walls” for frame stability and lateral load
resistance.

k. Provision for structure vertical movement shall be
provided where indicated on plans using a vertical
slide clip or other means in accordance with SSMA
recommendations.

2. Steel joists:

a. Joists shall be located directly over bearing studs
or a load distribution member shall be provided at
the top track.

b. Provide web stiffeners at reaction points where
indicated on plans.

c. Joist bridging shall be provided as shown on plans.

d. End blocking shall be provided where joist ends are
not otherwise restrained from rotation.

3. Steel Trusses:

a. Trusses shall be located directly over bearing studs
or a load distribution member shall be provided at
the top track.

b. Trusses shall be laterally supported at all panel
points and as shown on plans.

c. Required X—bracing, as indicated on plans, shall be
installed imediately after erection of the roof
trusses.

REVISION DATE BY

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

STRUCTURAL
GENERAL NOTES

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

PRINTED

DATE : 07-29-2024
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown
DRAWN : E.E. MORAN
JOB : 2023-228
SHEET #: S 1 2
OF SHEETS




REVISION DATE BY

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

KEY NOTES

1 PROPOSED DOUBLE ELECTRONIC BILLBOARD SIGN
2 EASEMENT PROPERTY LINE

3 PROVIDE Rain Forest "Rainforest Large Creek Stone River Rock" OVER DOUBLE LAYER OF
LANDSCAPE FABRIC.

4 CONCRETE CURB BY OTHERS
5 TRASH ENCLOSURE BY OTHERS
6 LANDSCAPE BY OTHERS

7 CONCRETE SIDEWALK BY OTHERS

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

SITE PLAN

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

PRINTED  47.29.2024

DATE :
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown

DRAWN : E.E. MORAN

JOB : 2023-228

SHEET #:

1. SITE PLAN S 2

SCALE 1" = 30'

OF SHEETS




(3
\S.34

40'_0"

THE DISPLAY MANUFACTURED SYSTEM

[1/8 TYP. SIDES & TOP

8"x3"x1/8" HSS

i —TYP.

8"x4"x1/8" HSS

| 118 Avp. SIDES (3) SIDES

HSS TOP. & BOT. BRACING VARIABLE
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN 8"X4"X1/8"@ 4-0"0.C. TYP. HSS
TOP. FRAME 4-0 4-0 4-0 | 4-0 | 4-0 4-0 4-0 | 4-0 | 4-0 ‘iy/ HSS BEAM TOP BRACING HSS BEAM
RN AL - — 12"x10"x0.313" 8"x4"x.1/8" THK. 12"x10"x0.313"
i A500 GR B @ 4-0" O.C. TYP. A500 GR B
5 [
DISPLAY St % L
SIZE |_HSS TOP. BEAM 5 HSS BRACING HSS BRACING
9'-6"x40' T 12x10"x0.313" ) 5 4"x4"x1/8"@ 4' O.C. 4"x4"x1/8"@ 4' O.C.
. a < TYP.
_ - N
* %
©@ + .
> HSS BRACING \_ DISPLAY . @
| | | | | | | AXIHAU@ A O.C. © =
_BOT. FRAME _ | i | | | | il N >
o
; - HSS BOT. BRACING
' A | -P n n n l_ " HSS BEAM
A HSS BOT. BEAM HSS BEAM §xa’x1/8'@ 4-0" O.C. TYP. | 12"x10"x0.313"
2"x2"x1/8" BRACING - . 21070 313" 12"x10"x0.313" ATIT L AS00GRB
ALTERNATE 1 ' A500 GR B iy \
ALL WELD . I | NN T )
o PIPE COLUMN 7 \ 7
‘I ' 24"@ x 1/2" THK. / - X
VA A500 GR. B RND.
ST > TYP.
PLATE TO COLUMN & BEAM ﬂ
STAINLESS STEEL 16 GA V V < = i O COLUMN & - \ e .3 TYP. @ EACH BRACE FRAME
. , o
SHEET. AT BOTH SIDES | ) = O 1/2" GALV. STEEL PLATE 16"%16" /2" THK.
_- N\ | - a $ T COVERED THE TOP OF A500 GR B
Y 3 L = X COLUMN - PIPE COLUMN
C T = S 24" x 12" THK.
! L B A500 GR. B RND.
1 I-I 6 o =O /N/
TaMERE - 5 e
T g 3 @ 3. FRAME VIEW
Gray Slate Stone ) o=y < )
Column Cap By NextStone, Typ. 'I l ! L_IIJ 9 = SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
| O x a
R 2 g g
1 = —
. ! —
2\ N ™ L . " ——— 3"x3" ANGLE INCLUDING WITH
o F T z 4"x4"x1/8" HSS
. ' (V)] e
I | = Z
c—J — Z -_
N mamas I L DISPLAY
r T T © © DEVICE THK. 10" —+ 4" m
e & R j// S
Y -EEsE © A
Malibu Honey Ledger Panel : . :,, : . : . :,, : . 1/S 5 /// -
Natural Quartzile Wall Tile I || o ;
MSI Typ. Installation, cleaning, & sealing per 1/S'5 : I ::' : I : I ::' : I '5 (3p) // | 18
Manufacturer. Y | i T / /
LI T T 1T 1 -
1 1 [ O | 7 .
See Sheet S.1 for Specifications. : : ”: : : : : ": : : ,’ ‘F ﬂ]j‘
| I T I
PROVIDE RIVER ROCK OVER DOUBLE it 5 ' | |
" " " \
LAYER OF THE BEST LANDSCAPE FABRIC e 12"x10"x.313" HSS - | |
TO PREVENT WEED OVERGROWTH. : T ::I : T : I :=| : I \\ | /
I r_ \ L N
' T B
\
| L >
I [ S [ /8
R DR BAtart R TYP. 178 ~~___ |-
VAR S e \j_ CLEAR TYP.
A Lo A N 10"
i : 4" REBAR #5 WELD TO COLUMN TYP. (4
AT S fj @ 24" 0.C. @
AN
mygwmomocoumme o — |t s 5. FRAME CONNECTION DETAIL TYP.
o SCALE 1" = 1-0"
- | |
CONCRETE BASE — _= I_
J\ 1 1 L 5!_0n®
SECTION A-A a
L 5|_0u @ - W

1. BILLBOARD ELEVATION VIEW

SCALE 3/16" = 1'-0"

GALV. HSS 8"x4"X1/8"

THK. TYP COLUMN

3'_2"

L—— RECTANGULAR
HSS BEAM

40'_Ou

2. BILLBOARD TOP FRAME VIEW

SCALE 1/4" =1'-0"

HSS 12'x10"x.313" BEAM R~

HSS 12"x10"x.313" BEAM

— |

— VERTICAL BELOW
4"x4"x1/8" HSS TYP.

TOP &

|

BOT. BRACING
8"x4"x1/8" @
4'-0" O.C. TYP.

14°

\

12'-10"

3'_2"

16"x16"x.1/2" THK.

A500 GR B

40'_Ou

HSS 12'x10"x.313" BEAM R~

N

GALV. HSS 8"x4"X1/8" ] _L
THK. TYP COLUMN _____—0 — VERTICAL FRAME
H 4"x4"x1/8" HSS TYP.
TOP &
BOT. BRACING
8"'x4"x1/8" @ .
5 4-0"0.C.TYP. ©
< N1
A N
-
—\_
L HSS BEAM N |

\

6. BILLBOARD BOT. FRAME VIEW

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"

REVISION DATE BY

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

ONE POLE
BILLBOARD

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

PAINTED  07-29-2024
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown
DRAWN : E.E. MORAN
JOB: 2023-228
SHEET #:

S.3

OF SHEETS




8'_0"

A\

p———

4'_0"

GALV. BRACING
HSS 2"x2"X.1/8" THK. TYP

—|_

AN

4'_0"

A\

4I_Oll

A

24!_1 (1]

4I_Oll

©

METAL LASER CUTTING
SHEET TYP. WELD TO
FRAME 4'x8' SCREWED
OR WELD TO HSS
2"x2"x1/8" FRAMES

37'_0"

4I_Oll

@

LW

4I_Oll

1/S.5

1/S.5

1 3'_5"

METAL LASER CUTTING
SHEET TYP. WELD TO
FRAME 4'x8' SCREWED
OR WELD TO HSS
2"x2"x.1/8" FRAMES

P

14°

:]];g JYP. INTERSECTION TOP & BOT.
GALV. HSS 4"x3"X1/8" A
THK. TYP 4-0 3716 '™
B 4‘_0n
=1 | 178
__—
- ‘|’/ 1 GALV. HSS 4'x3"X1/8" THK. TYP _
x <9 - 7 <
A — —I\ (49}
~\~\‘ \ y
1 l_L GALV. HSS 2'x2"X1/8" THK. TYP
/ — my|
2l_ou 1!_0" 1 1!_0" J 1!_0" ]

10" +10" 4 F1-0"
/

7'-11" 1/8

METAL LASER CUTTING/
SHEET TYP. WELD TO
FRAME 4'x8' SCREWED
OR WELD TO HSS
2"x2"x1/8" FRAMES

2. TOP VIEW FRAME1TO7

SCALE 1/2" = 1'-0"

JYP. ALL MEMBER

REVISION DATE BY

~— ~;’

X

/4
\ &

VA
Y

R

N, Va N

V
;‘0/

v/
ON
N

DA A A4

m\

()
A
A

Al
&

/.

\

42

N

R

§

Envelope Only Solution

~7

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

Jon D. Campidonica, P.E.

lirisA 2

24035 Rendered Member Diagram

BK Industries Pole Mounted Digital Sign

Fig -2

May 03, 2024 at 06:20 AM

24035 BK Industries 49 Foot ...

3. ISOMETRIC VIEW

1. "ATWATER" SIGN FRAME DETAIL

SCALE 1/2" = 1-0"

NTS
STRUCTURAL LEGEND

(1) HSS 16"x16"x0.5" THK. A500 GR. B
HSS 12"x10"x.313" THK. A500 GR. B
HSS 4"x3"x1/8" THK. A500 GR. B
HSS 2"x2"x1/8" THK. A500 GR. B

HSS 8"x4"x1/8" THK. A500 GR. B

@®@ @ 6 6 ©

HSS 4"x4"x1/8" THK. A500 GR. B

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

ONE POLE
BILLBOARD

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

PRINTED  47.29.2024

DATE :
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown

DRAWN : E.E. MORAN

JOB : 2023-228

SHEET #:
S.4

OF SHEETS




+/- 1'-0" CLEAR

Provide Metal Silicone

2® Sealant

1/S.5

4!_0"

— Gray Slate Stone

Column Cap By NextStone,
Typ.

VERTICAL REBAR #4
36" MIN. LAP

Malibu Honey
Ledger Panel 6 in. x 6 in.
Textured Quartzite Wall Tile

- - 3

1/S.5

| T—REBAR#4 @16" O.C.

SEE DETAIL 1/S.5

CONCRETE MASONRY
BLOCK 8"x8"x16" SMOOTH
GREY. FULL GROUTED

(6) REBAR #5 10'-0" LONG
6'-0" EMBEDMENT

2. CONCRETE MASONRY WALL

SCALE 3/4" = 1'-0"

2/S.5

4!_0"

4I_0ll

1. CONCRETE MASONRY WALL

SCALE 3/4" = 1'-0"

34"
~
______ 3
| &

2/S.5

(4) HRZ. REBAR #4 @ 16"

O.C.

(6) VERTICAL REBAR #4

36" MIN. LAP. TYP.

BARS OTHER THAN
STIRRUPS, TIES, HOOPS & CROSS—TIES
BAR y 180° 135° 90"
SIZE D "L "L "L
43 2 1/4 21/2 - 41/2
44 3 21/2 - 6
45 3 3/4 21/2 - 71/2
46 41/2 3 - 9
47 51/4 31/2 - 10 1/2
48 6 4 - 12
49 9 1/2 41/2 - 13 1/2
410 10 3/4 51/4 - 15 1/4
41 12 5 3/4 - 17
#4 18 1/4 7 - 21
#18 24 9 - 27
STIRRUPS, TIES, HOOPS & CROSS—TIES

43 11/2 - 4 4
44 2 - 4 4
45 21/2(1) - 4 4
46 41/2 - 41/2 9
47 51/4 - 51/4 10 1/2
48 6 - 6 12

(1) USER 3 3/4” IN CONC. BLK. CONSTRUCTION

NOTE:
ALL
DIMENSIONS

GIVEN ARE IN
INCHES.

DOWELS OR BARS
WIRE TIES (TYP.)

< &

o

© N

%<

Sao<

: o8

500 O

MIN. _ LAP =

HORIZONTAL SPLICE

NOTES:

1. ALL VERTICAL REINFORCING FOR COLUMNS,
PIERS, AND WALLS SHALL BE DOWELED
AS SHOWN EXCEPT SPECIFIC DETAILS ON
DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN CASES OF
CONFLICT.

2. DOWELS SHALL BE THE SAME GRADE, SIZE
AND NUMBER AS VERTICAL REINFORCING.

3. REBAR LAP TYP.

NTS
DIAMETER
R
L
(MIN.)
180" HOOK

LEGEND FOR REINF.

DIAMETER DIAMETER

(MIN.)

v
Q‘\\%

135 HOOK 90° HOOK

BENDS (NOT SHOWN TO SCALE)

|

—
"6

INDICATES 90° BEND IN PLANE OF DRAWING

INDICATES 90° BEND PERPENDICULAR TO
PLAN OF DRAWING

INDICATES 135° BEND IN PLANE OF DRAWING

INDICATES 180" BEND IN PLANE OF DRAWING

INDICATES 135" OR 180" BEND PERPENDICULAR TO
PLAN OF DRAWING

INDICATES OFFSET IN PLANE OF DRAWING

REINFORCING BAR BENDS & HOOKS

4. STANDARD REBAR LAP & BEND

REVISION DATE BY

CONSULTANT ENGINEER:

JON D. CAMPIDONICA, P.E.
Structural Design & Civil Engineering
LIC. 61969

2613 Turner Rd.

Ceres, CA 95307

(209) 484-9782
jon@jdcampengineering.com

SYCAMORE AVE.
DIGITAL BILLBOARD

ONE POLE
BILLBOARD

PROJECT ADDRESS:
1883 Sycamore Ave.
Atwater, CA 95301

APN 001-146-011

OWNER:

LR-K HOLDING LLC

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

CONTRACTOR:

BK INDUSTRIES, INC.

221 BUSINESS PARKWAY
ATWATER, CA 95301

(209) 631-4247

DIGITAL DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY
SERVICES, LLC.

E. EDUARDO MORAN

3933 SHADY OAK CT

TURLOCK, CA. 95382

(209) 620-2208

ARCHDRAFTING2005@YAHOO.COM

THESE DOCUMENTS ARE PROPERTY OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC, AND ARE NOT
TO BE REPRODUCED, CHANGED OR COPIED WITHOUT
THE EXPRESSED WRITEN CONSENT OF DIGITAL
DRAFTING TECHNOLOGY SERVICES,LLC.

P 07-29-2024
DATE : 06-01-2024
SCALE : As Shown
DRAWN : E.E. MORAN
JOB : 2023-228
SHEET #:

S.5

OF SHEETS




~

PLANNING COMMISSION -\\
PLANNING COMMISSION tagancieep okt

AGENDA REPORT Donald Borgwardt lleisha Sanders

Harold Kadach WMayra Sanchez-Garcia

- J

MEETING DATE: October 16, 2024

TO: Chair and Commissioners
FROM: Kayla Rashad, Executive Assistant
SUBJECT: Public hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending

City Council adopt a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment
amending Chapter 17.16 “Low Density Residential Districts” of
the Atwater Municipal Code to add “R-1-5” (5,000 square foot
lots) as a single-family residential district under the Low Density
Residential Zone.

RECOMMENDED COMMISSION ACTION:

It is recommended that Planning Commission:

1. Open the public hearing and receive any testimony from the public; and,
2. Close the public hearing; and,

3. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guideline section 15061(b)(3), “Review for
Exemption”, under the common sense exemption, and adopt Resolution No. 0256-
24 Recommending the City Council Adopt Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment No.
24-23-0100 Amending Chapter 17.16: “Low Density Residential Districts” of the
Atwater Municipal Code, to add “R-1-5" (5,000 square foot lots) as a Single Family
Residential district.

L. BACKGROUND:

Chapter 17.16 of the Atwater Municipal Code (AMC) provides the following
single-family residential districts: R-E (Residential Estate), R-1-6 (6,000 sq ft
lots), R-1-8 (8,000 sq ft lots), and R-1-10 (10,000 sq ft lots). These residential
districts have minimum development standards under Section 17.16.050 of the
Atwater Municipal Code (Figure 1).

Figure 1: Development Standards for Low Density Residential Districts




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0256-24 Page 2

R-E R-1-10 R-1-8 R-1-6

Minimum Lot Area per dwelling unit (sq. ft.) 16,000 10,000 8,000 6,000
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Interior Lot 110 100 80 &0
Minimum Lot Width (feet) Corner Lot 110 100 80 70
Minimum Lot Depth 130 100 100 100
Minimum Front yard Setback (exterior) 20 20 20 20
Minimum Rear yard Setback 20 20 20 15
Minimum Side yard Setback (interior) 10 10 5 5
Minimum Side yard Setback Corner Lot

abutting a front yard 20 20 15 15

abutting a side yard 10 10 10 10
Minimum Landscaped or open recreational area 30 percent 30 percent 30 percent 30 percent

Chapter 17.17: “Medium-Density Single-Family Residential Districts,” of the Atwater
Municipal Code (AMC) provides the following single-family residential districts: R-1-3
(3,000 sq ft lots), R-1-4 (4,000 sq ft lots), and R-1-5 (5,000 sq ft lots). These residential
districts have minimum development standards under Section 17.16.050 of the Atwater
Municipal Code (Figure 2).

Figure 2: Development Standards for Medium-Density Single-Family Residential Districts

R-1-5 R-1-4 R-1-3

Minimum Lot Area per dwelling unit (sq. ft.) 5.000 4,000 3,000
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Interior Lot 50 50 40
Minimum Lot Width (feet). Corner Lot 60 60 50
Minimum Lot Depth (feet) 100 80 60
Minimum Front yard Setback (exterior) 10 10 10
Minimum Side yard Setback (interior) 5 5 5
Minimum Side yard Setback, Corner Lot

abutting a front yard 10 10 10

abutting a side yard 5 5 5
Minimum Rear yard Setback 5 5 5
Minimum Landscaped and open space recreation area 25 percent 25 percent 25 percent




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0256-24 Page 3

This Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA) would propose, if adopted by Council
upon Planning Commission's recommendation, to amend the single-family residential
districts to add “R-1-5” (5,000 square foot lots) as a single-family residential district under
Chapter 17.16: “Low Density Residential Districts” of the Atwater Municipal Code.

ANALYSIS:

The Low Density Residential (LDR) Land Use under the City of Atwater’'s General Plan
states, “This category provides for residential development at densities that are typical for
existing single family residential subdivisions within the City. The permitted density range
is 3.1 to 7.0 units per acre. Parcel sizes range from 5,000 to 11,000 square feet in area.
All properties must be served by public sewer and water. Typical land uses include single
family residences and residential accessory uses, churches, schools, parks, community
care facilities, and necessary public utility and safety facilities. Secondary dwelling units
may be permitted consistent with state and local regulations”.

To make the City’s zoning consistent with its General Plan, the City is seeking the
recommendation for City Council’s approval regarding ZOTA No. 24-23-0100 to add “R-
1-5” (5,000 square foot lots) as a residential district under Chapter 17.16: “Low Density
Residential Districts”.

The addition of “R-1-5" (5,000 square foot lots) under Chapter 17.16 would also
necessitate a new “development standards table” for Section 17.16.050 as previously
shown in Figure 1. The new table for Section 17.16.050 would be as shown below:

R-E R-1-10 R-1-8 R-1-6 R-1-5
Minimum Lot Area per dwelling unit (sq. ft.) 16,000 10,000 8,000 6,000 5,000
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Interior Lot 110 100 80 60 50
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Cormer Lot 110 100 &80 70 60
Minimum Lot Depth 130 100 100 100 100
Minimum Front yard Setback (exterior) 20 20 20 20 10
Minimum Rear yard Setback 20 20 20 15 5
Minimum Side yard Setback (interior) 10 10 5 5 5
Minimum Side yard Setback, Corner Lot
Abutting a front yard 20 20 15 15 10
Abutting a side yard 10 10 10 10 2
Minimum Landscaped or open recreational area 30 percent | 30 percent | 30 percent | 30 percent | 25 percent




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0256-24 Page 4

Il FISCAL IMPACTS:

No negative fiscal impacts are anticipated with the approval of this project. This item
has been reviewed by the Finance Department.

M. LEGAL REVIEW:

This item has been reviewed by the City Attorney.

IV.  EXISTING POLICY:

The ordinance will amend Chapter 17.16: "Low Density Residential Districts," of the
Atwater Municipal Code to add “R-1-5” (5,000 square foot lots) as a single-family
residential district

The proposed ordinance does not conflict with any policies of the General Plan or other
City policies or guidelines

V. INTERDEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION:

An interdepartmental routing sheet was sent to all required departments and affected
agencies for review, and their comments and conditions have been incorporated.

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

The public hearing was adequately noticed and advertised for the regularly scheduled
Planning Commission hearing. The public will have the opportunity to provide comments
on this item prior to Planning Commission action.

VIl. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the draft ordinance is
categorically exempt under section 15061(b)(3), “Review for Exemption”. This exemption
states, the activity is covered by the commons sense exemption that CEQA applies only to
projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.
Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question
may have a significant effect on the environment. This is not subject to CEQA.

VIII. STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL.:

Following adoption of Resolution No. 0256-24, the recommendation will be forwarded to
the City Council for consideration.

Prepared by: Kayla Rashad, Executive Assistant



Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0256-24 Page 5

Submitted by: Greg Thompson, Deputy City Manager / Community Development
Director

Attachments:

1. RSO No. 0256-24 Resolution
2. Draft Ordinance
3. Exhibit A



PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ATWATER

RESOLUTION NO. 0256-24

A  RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ATWATER
RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT NO.
24-23-0100 AMENDING CHAPTER 17.16: “LOW
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS” OF THE
ATWATER MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD “R-1-5”
(5,000 SQUARE FOOT LOTS) AS A SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, the City of Atwater wishes to enact programs, policies, and regulations in
support of housing and residential development; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Atwater Municipal Code currently limits lot size(s) in zones for Low
Density Residential Districts; and,

WHEREAS, in accordance with the General Plan Land Use Designation of “Low Density
Residential (LDR)”, City staff submits Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA) 24-23-
0100 for an amendment to Chapter 17.16: “Low Density Residential Districts” of the Atwater
Municipal Code to add “R-1-5" (5,000 square foot lots) as a single family residential district;
and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing as required by law
on October 16, 2024; and,

WHEREAS, the City’s General Plan provides a framework to enact the programs, policies,
and regulations in support of such development; and

WHEREAS, this project is exempt under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
guideline section 15061(b)(3), “Review for Exemption”. This exemption states, the activity is
covered by the commons sense exemption that CEQA applies only to projects which have
the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect
on the environment. This is not subject to CEQA.; and,

WHEREAS, _ person(s) spoke in favor of the ordinance, __ person(s) spoke in



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0256-24 Page 2

opposition of the ordinance, and __ written comment(s) have been submitted either in
opposition or in favor of the ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the ZOTA will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of
the neighborhood, nor have any adverse effect on the community; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the following findings can be made for
ZOTA No. 24-23-0100:

1. The proposed ordinance will ensure that all residential subdivision development
projects submitted to the planning department continue to undergo review for
consistency with the City’s General Plan and the established development standards
provided by the City of Atwater Municipal Code.

The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Atwater General Plan.

3. Adoption of the resolution recommending the City Council adopt the proposed
ordinance is exempt from CEQA review under CEQA guideline section 15061(b)(3).
The public hearing for this project has been adequately noticed and advertised.

The project will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the
neighborhood or any adverse effects on the community.

N

o s

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals above are true and correct and
hereby incorporated by reference. The Planning Commission of the City of Atwater does
hereby recommend that the City Council adopt ZOTA No. 24-23-0100.

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 16" day of October, 2024.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:
APPROVED:
DON BORGWARDT,
CHAIR

ATTEST:

GREG THOMPSON,

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER /

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR



CITY COUNCIL
OF THE
CITY OF ATWATER

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF ATWATER ADOPTING ZONING
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 24-23-0100
AMENDING CHAPTER 17.16: “LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS” OF THE ATWATER
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD “R-1-5" (5,000
SQUARE FOOT LOTS) AS A SINGLE-FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

WHEREAS, the City of Atwater wishes to enact programs, policies, and regulations in support
of housing and residential development; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Atwater Municipal Code currently limits lot size(s) in zones for Low
Density Residential Districts; and,

WHEREAS, in accordance with the General Plan Land Use Designation of “Low Density
Residential (LDR)”, City staff submits Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA) 24-23-
0100 for an amendment to Chapter 17.16: “Low Density Residential Districts” of the Atwater
Municipal Code to add “R-1-5" (5,000 square foot lots) as a single family residential district;
and,

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2024, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public
hearing and considered the staff report, recommendations by staff, and public testimony
concerning this proposed Ordinance. Following the public hearing, the Planning
Commission voted to forward the Ordinance to the City Council with a recommendation
in favor of its adoption; and

WHEREAS, the City’s General Plan provides a framework to enact the programs, policies,
and regulations in support of such development; and

WHEREAS, this project is exempt under California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
guideline section 15061 (b)(3), “Review for Exemption”. This exemption states, the activity is
covered by the commons sense exemption that CEQA applies only to projects which have
the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect
on the environment. This is not subject to CEQA.; and,



City Council Ordinance No. XXXX Page 2

WHEREAS, _ person(s) spoke in favor of the ordinance, __ person(s) spoke in
opposition of the ordinance, and __ written comment(s) have been submitted either in
opposition or in favor of the ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the ZOTA will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of
the neighborhood, nor have any adverse effect on the community; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings can be made for ZOTA No. 24-
23-0100:

1. The proposed ordinance will ensure that all residential subdivision development
projects submitted to the planning department continue to undergo review for
consistency with the City’s General Plan and the established development standards
provided by the City of Atwater Municipal Code.

2. The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Atwater General Plan.

3. Adoption of the ordinance is exempt from CEQA review under CEQA guideline section
15061(b)(3).

4, The public hearing for this project has been adequately noticed and advertised.

5. The project will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the

neighborhood or any adverse effects on the community.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Atwater as
follows:

SECTION 1. Incorporation. The recitals above are each incorporated by reference and
adopted as findings by the City Council.

SECTION 2. CEQA. this project is exempt under California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) guideline section 15061(b)(3), “Review for Exemption”. This exemption states, the
activity is covered by the commons sense exemption that CEQA applies only to projects
which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a
significant effect on the environment. This is not subject to CEQA.

SECTION 3. General Plan. The City Council hereby finds that the adoption of the
Ordinance is consistent with the General Plan.

SECTION 4. Code Amendment. Chapter 17.16: “Low Density Residential Districts,” of
the Atwater Municipal Code is hereby amended and restated to read in its entirety as
provided in “Exhibit A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 5. Effective Date. Within fifteen (15) days from and after adoption, this
Ordinance shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and
published in Merced County and circulated in Atwater, in accordance with California
Government Code Section 36933. This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced thirty
(30) days after its adoption.




City Council Ordinance No. XXXX Page 3

SECTION 7. Publication. The City Clerk is directed to certify to the adoption of this
Ordinance and post or publish this Ordinance as required by law.

SECTION 8. Custodian of Records. The custodian of records for this Ordinance is the
City Clerk and the records comprising the administrative record are located at 1160 Fifth
St, Atwater, CA 95301.

SECTION 9. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person
or circumstance is held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity
has no effect on the other provisions or applications of the Ordinance that can be given
effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this extent, the provisions of this
Ordinance are severable. The City Council declares that it would have adopted this
Ordinance irrespective of the invalidity of any portion thereof.

INTRODUCED:
ADOPTED:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

MIKE NELSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

KORY J. BILLINGS, CITY CLERK



CHAPTER 17.16 - LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
17.16.010 - Purpose.

To protect the value and charm of the existing residential areas, and to promote health, safety,
comfort, convenience, and the general welfare, the following single-family residential districts are
established by this chapter:

R-E Residential Estate

R-1-10, R-1-8, R-1-6, and R-1-5.

17.16.020 - Principal permitted uses.
A. One single-family dwelling per lot.

B. Supportive housing as defined in Section 17.06.613.

C. Transitional housing as defined in Section 17.06.627.

17.16.030 - Accessory uses.

Accessory buildings and uses customarily appurtenant to a single-family residence, such as:
A. Garages, carports, off-street parking areas;
B. Private swimming pools;
C. Sheds for tools and garden equipment (see Section 17.16.080);
D. Parabolic antennas;

E. Living quarters for relatives, friends, or persons regularly employed on the premises, but not
rented or otherwise conducted as a business, provided that no kitchen facilities are installed;

F. Community care facilities;

G. Occupations conducted away from home, when the residence is used only as business
address. (See definitions: Home Occupation.)

17.16.040 - Conditional uses requiring a permit.

A. Public and quasi-public buildings and uses of recreational, educational, religious, cultural, or
public service types; not including corporation yards, storage, repair yards, warehouses and
similar uses;

B. Home occupations;
C. A second unit with kitchen and bath facilities, if in compliance with Chapter 17.28.

D. Detached accessory structures greater than 500 square feet in size but cover less than 60
percent of the lot upon which it is constructed.


https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.06DE_17.06.613SUHO
https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.06DE_17.06.627TRHO
https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.16LODEREDI_17.16.080OTRECO
https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.28ACDWUN

17.16.045 - Prohibited uses.

The maintenance of kennels, and storage for any commercial purpose shall be prohibited.

17.16.050 - Lot area, dimension, setbacks, density, and

coverage.

The following minimum requirements shall be observed, except where increased for conditional
uses, or by the Planning Commission or City Council to mitigate environmental impact.

R-E R-1-10 R-1-8 R-1-6 R-1-5
Minimum Lot Area per dwelling unit (sq. ft.) 16,000 10,000 8,000 6,000 5,000
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Interior Lot 110 100 80 60 50
Minimum Lot Width (feet), Corner Lot 110 100 80 70 60
Minimum Lot Depth 130 100 100 100 100
Minimum Front yard Setback (exterior) 20 20 20 20 10
Minimum Rear yard Setback 20 20 20 15 5
Minimum Side yard Setback (interior) 10 10 5 5 5
Minimum Side yard Setback, Corner Lot
Abutting a front yard 20 20 15 15 10
Abutting a side yard 10 10 10 10 2
Minimum Landscaped or open recreational area 30 percent | 30 percent | 30 percent | 30 percent | 25 percent

17.16.055 - Exceptions to setback requirements.

Setback requirements along major arterials shall supersede the requirements of this chapter.

A. To offset the monotonous building setbacks, a property owner may choose to reduce the front
yard setback by up to three feet, but shall be required to have the same number of feet added
to the regular rear yard by the same number of feet.

If a property owner chooses to give an additional three feet or less in addition to the required

front yard setback, he may reduce the rear yard by the same number feet.

B. Side yard for boat and RV parking. If the property owner adds an extra five feet to a five foot side
yard requirement, in order to park vehicles behind the front yard setback, he may encroach by

five feet into the rear yard setback.



C. Single family residential setbacks for lots that front on a cul-de-sac bulb and have an average
lot depth of less than 100 feet may encroach by up to five feet into the required front yard
setback provided the garage be no closer than 20 feet to the property line.

D. Attached unenclosed patio covers may encroach by ten feet into the required rear yard
setback.

17.16.060 - Height of structures.

No building constructed in this zone shall exceed a height of 35 feet unless the following has
occurred:

1. The Fire Marshal and Chief Building Official, or designees, have both approved the site plans,
improvement plans, and/or other required submittals for the project; and

2. The Planning Commission makes all of the following findings:

A. The applicant has adequately demonstrated a need for the project to exceed 35 feet in building
height that is related to the project's benefit to the community, or due to site constraints, orin
order to achieve desired architectural qualities;

B. The project will be exemplary in its design;

C. The project design will complement and be compatible with the setting and the character of
the neighboring properties with sensitivity to any adjacent federal, state, and City or other
historic landmarks;

D. The project's proximity to railroads, airports, major freeways or highways, or other
transportation hubs, stations, or centers will not interfere, impede, or otherwise disturb such
transit services;

E. The projectis consistent and compatible with the City's General Plan, Zoning Code, and other
adopted specific plans and/or master plans;

F. Intended use of the project will enhance or promote the standard of living for City residents,
and/or the local economy;

G. The project's proposed height would not adversely affect visual blockage of light, air, or cause
intrusion of privacy to adjacent and surrounding properties;

H. The projectis not detrimental to the health, safety, peace, comfort, and general welfare of
persons or property in the neighborhood and surrounding environs, including without
limitation, it will not affect emergency response times or services, nor seismic and/or
structural integrity; and

. The project's proposed building height does not impede pedestrian or vehicular accessibility
along any public or private pathways, sidewalks, driveways or roadways, visually impede any
safe use of the same, or otherwise present a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular use of the
same.



Additional conditions of approval may be imposed by the Planning Commission relative to the
project as it relates to this section.

17.16.065 - Fences.

Fences constructed from wood may not exceed seven feet in height on the interior property
lines, but may not exceed three feet in height in exterior setbacks or within the clear-zone. A
chainlink fence without slats or similar type, which does not block the view, may be four feet
high within exterior setbacks. On all corner lots, exterior side yard fence constructed from
wood may be seven feet in height, set back ten feet from the property line.

17.16.070 - Exterior yards or setbacks.

An exterior yard or setback shall be identified as follows: All yards adjacent to a public right-of-
way shall be exterior yards.

17.16.080 - Other required conditions.

A. Off-street parking as required elsewhere in this title.

B. Clear zone: On corner lots, the maximum height within 25 feet of that point of the lot nearest
to the street intersection may not exceed three feet, and provided further, that no fence, hedge,
wall or other natural or structural object shall in any way impair visibility at intersections in
such a manner as to endanger life, health, or property.

C. Landscaping shall not obscure ingress or egress of neighboring properties so as to endanger
health and safety.

D. Distance between main buildings shall be a minimum of ten feet, unless fire or building code
require a larger distance.

E. Zero lot line may be established in Planned Development zones and in new developmentin
compliance with Article 16, Subdivision Ordinance of the Atwater Municipal Code.

F. Detached accessory buildings shall not exceed a height of 16 feet to the highest point of the
roof, and shall not encroach on any exterior yard setback, and may not be placed within five
feet of the interior rear or side property line.

G. Accessory buildings on through lots shall have not less than 20 feet to the rear property line.

H. An accessory building or structure, which contains less than 120 square feet of projected
roof area and is less than eight feet in overall height is exempt from the provisions of this
chapter, provided that no such structure shall encroach on any exterior yard or easement, and
that only one exempt structure is permitted per residential lot.

I. Accessory structures shall not exceed 500 square feet in size or cause greater than 60
percent lot coverage (for accessory structures exceeding 500 square feet in size see
Section 17.16.040).

J. Reserved.


https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17.16LODEREDI_17.16.040COUSREPE

K. Distance between main buildings and detached accessory buildings/structures shall be a
minimum of five feet unless fire or building codes require a larger distance.

17.16.090 - Reserved.

Editor's note— Ord. CS 1059, § 1, adopted March 27, 2023, repealed § 17.16.090, which pertained
to site plan and design review.


https://library.municode.com/ca/atwater/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=1218256

~

PLANNING COMMISSION
PLANNING COMMISSION tagancieep okt

AGENDA REPORT Donald Borgwardt lleisha Sanders

Harold Kadach WMayra Sanchez-Garcia

N

J

MEETING DATE: October 16, 2024

TO: Chair and Commissioners
FROM: John Seymour, City Engineer
SUBJECT: Public hearing to consider adopting a Resolution

recommending that the City Council of Atwater approve an
Amendment to Update the Improvement Standards and
Specifications of the City of Atwater.

RECOMMENDED COMMISSION ACTION:

It is recommended that Planning Commission:

1. Open the public hearing and take any testimony from the public; and,
2. Close the public hearing; and,

3. Adopt Resolution No. 0258-24 making a recommendation to the City Council of
Atwater to approve an amendment and update to the Improvement Standards and
Specifications of the City of Atwater by repealing the current city standards listed
here: DR-1, SCG-1, SCG-2, SCG-4, SCG-5, ST-3 and replacing them with the
attached improvement standards. Adopt standard details ST-8, ST-9. Repeal
standard details D-1, D-5.

l. BACKGROUND:

On June 28, 1982, the City of Atwater established a set of Public Improvement Standards
and Specifications (PIS). The PIS is comprised of designs applicable to engineering
structures that are commonly installed as part of infrastructure improvements or new
developments within the City of Atwater. The PIS was based on the State of California
Department of Transportation’s “Standards and Specifications.” The PIS has been
amended several times since its establishment as the industry standards and the City of
Atwater’s needs change. Staff is proposing to amend the following City Improvement
standards: DR-1, SCG-1, SCG-2, SCG-4, SCG-5, ST-3, ST-8, and ST-9.




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0258-24 Page 2

ANALYSIS:

Staff is looking to amend the cross-section standards for the following: DR-1 (residential
driveway approach), SCG-1 (Rolled curb, gutter, sidewalk and Vertical Curb, gutter, and
sidewalk), SCG-2 (Sidewalk Details), SCG-4 (Concrete Curb, gutter, and sidewalk
construction standards), SCG-5 (Roll Curb to Vertical Curb Transition), ST-3 (Cul-de-sac
and Knuckle Intersection), ST-8 (local streets and residential cul-de-sac), ST-9 (collector
street back-up residential) . The current city improvement standards and specifications
require updating to accommodate new Right-of-way standard details. DR-1 will replace
the current DR-1 and will update to the current ADA standards. Standard SCG-1 will add
a rolled curb as an alternative to the currently adopted vertical curb standard. SCG-1 will
also amend the current vertical curb standard, SCG-5 will provide transition details
between rolled and vertical curbs. SCG-2 will provide additional details regarding
sidewalk installation SCG-4 will provide additional specifications for construction of curb,
gutter, and sidewalk sections. Standard ST-3 will provide additional updates the current
roadway cul-de-sac (56° ROW and 60’ ROW) along with revised knuckle intersection
standards for the (56’ and 60° ROW sections). Standard detail ST-8 will provide the city
with a new 56’ right-of-way section for residential streets whereas ST-9 will provide a new
back-up or alternative 56° ROW street section. The adoption of new city standards will
enable the city to explore various new residential developments.

Il FISCAL IMPACTS:

No negative fiscal impacts are anticipated with the approval of this project. This item has
been reviewed by the Finance Department.

M. LEGAL REVIEW:

This item has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office.

IV. EXISTING POLICY:

This Resolution will recommend to city council the repealing of the current improvement
standards: DR-1, SCG-1, SCG-2, SCG-4, SCG-5, ST-3 and replacing them with the
attached revisions, and adopt standards ST-8 and ST-9.

V. INTERDEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION:

An interdepartmental routing sheet was sent to all required departments and affected
agencies for review, and their comments and conditions have been incorporated.

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0258-24 Page 3

The public hearing was adequately noticed and advertised for the regularly scheduled
Planning Commission hearing. The public will have the opportunity to provide comments
on this item prior to Planning Commission action.

VIl. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

This item is not a “project” under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as this
activity does not cause either a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, pursuant to Public Resources
Code section 21065.

VIIl. STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL.:

Following adoption of Resolution No. 0258-24, the Recording Secretary will forward the
recommended resolutions to the City Council for consideration.

Prepared by: John Seymour, City Engineer

Submitted by: Greg Thompson, Deputy City Manager / Community Development
Director

Attachments:
1. Resolution No. 0258-24
2. Exhibit A: DR-1, SCG-1 (rolled), SCG-1 (Vertical), SCG-2, SCG-4, SCG-
5, ST-3, ST-8, ST-9



PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ATWATER

RESOLUTION NO. 0258-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ATWATER
RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL OF
ATWATER APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO
UPDATE THE IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS AND
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE CITY OF ATWATER.

WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing on October 16, 2024, the Planning Commission
of the City of Atwater reviewed an Amendment to Update the Standard Plans and
Specifications of the City of Atwater; and,

WHEREAS, this action consists of amending the following city standards: DR-1 (residential
driveway approach), SCG-1 (Rolled curb, gutter, sidewalk and Vertical Curb, gutter, and
sidewalk), SCG-2 (Sidewalk Details), SCG-4 (Concrete Curb, gutter, and sidewalk
construction standards), SCG-5 (Roll Curb to Vertical Curb Transition), ST-3 (Cul-de-sac
and Knuckle Intersection), adopting standards: ST-8 (local streets and residential cul-de-
sac), ST-9 (collector street back-up residential), repealing standards D-1 (residential
Driveway approach), D-5 (General Specifications-Driveway Approach) ; and,

WHEREAS, __ person(s) spoke in favor of the Amendment and Update, __ person(s) spoke
in opposition of the Amendment and Update, and ___ written comment(s) have been submitted
either in opposition or in favor of the Amendment and Update; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed Standard Plans and Specifications Amendment and Update would
not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the neighborhood nor have
any adverse effect on the community; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the following findings can be made for the
Amendment and Update to the Standard Plans and Specifications in support of the project:

1. The public hearing for this Amendment and Update was adequately noticed and
advertised.
2. Adoption of the resolution will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and

welfare of the neighborhood or any adverse effects on the community.



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0258-24 Page 2

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of Atwater
does hereby approve Resolution No. 0258-24 recommending the City Council of Atwater
approve an amendment to update the Improvement Standards and Specifications of the City
of Atwater.

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 16th day of October, 2024.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:
APPROVED:
DONALD BORGWARDT,
CHAIR

ATTEST:

GREG THOMPSON,

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER /

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR



Exhibit A

City of Atwater Improvement Standards and
Specifications Revision

Planning Commission

10/16/2024



EXPANSION JOINT, SEE
STD PLAN SCG-2

SIDEWALK
LANDSCAPE STRIP é:EE SHEET 2 %[F)’A';EL%N ch%'sz SEE
A\ r

- ‘ 20" |MAX. ’/¥ ‘

, 10" [MIN. < _
B é S

7

| \ |
= \ \
=l I T _ =
J] ol = '—;\—» 3! | ©

T WARP
FLOW LINE —

WEAKENED PLANE JOINT
PLAN VIEW ON CENTER OF DRIVEWAY

NOTES:

-_—
.

oNo

DRIVEWAY TO CONFORM WITH EXISTING SIDEWALK. ALL CONCRETE TO BE MINOR CONCRETE PER
SECTION 90, CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

IF SIDEWALK IN BACK EXISTS WHERE NEW RAMP IS TO BE PLACED, IT SHALL BE REMOVED AND
REPLACED WITH 6" THICK PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE.

DRIVEWAY RAMP SHALL BE AS WIDE AS EXISTING DRIVEWAY INTO YARD, ROUNDED UP TO NEXT EVEN
FOOT (10'-0"" MINIMUM).

IN EVENT OF OBSTRUCTIONS (E.G., POWER POLES, ETC.) WIDTH MAY BE MODIFIED TO MEET EXISTING
CONDITIONS AS APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

WHEN IT IS NOT POSSIBLE TO PROVIDE 2'-0" OF FULL HEIGHT CURB WITH STANDARD 3'-0"
WARPS ON EITHER SIDE BETWEEN ADJACENT DRIVEWAYS, A COMMON DRIVEWAY MAY BE INSTALLED
WITH APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER.

FINE HAIR LIGHT BROOM FINISH.

A VARIANCE TO MINIMUM OR MAXIMUM WIDTH REQUIRES CITY ENGINEER APPROVAL.

SEE STANDARD PLAN SCG—4 FOR CONSTRUCTION NOTES.

SHEET 1 OF 2

RESIDENTIAL APPROACH CITY OF ATWATER

DRIVEWAY STANDARD DETAIL

DRAWN: JV.P NO.

DATE: 09.18.24 D R _ 1

REV.

APPROVED
BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




/ BACK OF WALK

| | [ g
EXPANSION JOINT FLOWLINE / /

EXPANSION JOINT

Lo

FRONT ELEVATION

|‘ 5I_OII 7|‘ 5l_oll VF|I-
_ SIDEWALK
_f.O =
L1-.5.:z MAX 10Z max. |
SECTION A—A
4" CLASS Il AB UNDER DRIVEWAY, CURB, AND
GUTTER, COMPACTED AT A MIN. RELATIVE
COMPACTION OF 95%. SUBGRADE SHALL BE
SCARIFIED AND COMPACTED TO A MIN. RELATIVE
COMPACTION OF 95% FOR A DEPTH OF 6"
SHEET 2 OF 2
RESIDENTIAL APPROACH ~ |CITY OF ATWATER
DRIVEWAY
DRAWN: JVP NO.
DATE: 09.18.24 _
APPROVED DR—1
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




2!

2”
5 o
(3) §" X 24" STEEL DOWELS
AT FLOWLINE AT EVERY EXPANSION JOINT
ROLL CURB & GUTTER
5! | 1! FOC 2! 2”
- MIN. D '% R
1.5% MAX. SLOPE ‘ e ‘k =
U RS P e 44’:’._& T ?
6" 4—‘6” *
EII
SEE NOTE 6

(STD PLAN SCG-4)

NOTES:

1.

13" X

ROLL CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALK

SEE STANDARD PLAN SCG—4 FOR CURB, GUTTER, AND
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION NOTES.

2. NEITHER KEY NOR CONNECTING REBAR IS NECESSARY IF
CURB & GUTTER ARE POURED MONOLITHICALY WITH SIDEWALK.

33" KEY, UNLESS POURED
MONOLITHIC. SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET
FOR ALTERNATE CONNECTION DETAIL.

4”

6”

NO. 4 REBAR
@ 24" o.C.

\_/

4_||

ALTERNATE CONNECTION

SHEET 2 OF 2

ROLL CURB, GUTTER &

CITY OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL
SIDEWALK
DRAWN: | VP NO.
DATE: | 09.17.24 _
APPROVED SCG—1
REV. BY COMMUNTTY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: | MTS




6” | 6“ | 2“

| |
(. -\ 1 - 1
4 © ' %D
:<I' Z 7 P Tl = |= o \
— = o 2 = s ThaLEy
i © q =
By |
7 1/2" (2) DOWELS AT EXPANSION
JOINTS PER NOTE 6, SCG—4
NE (2) DOWELS AT EXPANSION M-8
VERTICAL CURB JOINTS PER NOTE 6, SCG—4 MEDIAN CURB
31 1/2"
6” FL 1 1/2”

<—.‘ <—24“

MIN.

12”
P
i
[ 6'
2
MIN

|

2“
—
3) DOWELS AT EXPANSION A2-6
JO(IN)TS PER NOTE 6, SCG—4 VERTICAL CURB & GUTTER *VARIES AT CURB RAMPS
5_g" | 31 1/2"
MIN. FoC

1.5% MAX. SLOPE

SEE NOTE NO. 6

13" X 33" KEY NO. 4 REBAR\JL/

- SEE DETAILS THIS "
(STD PLAN SCG—4) A2—6 WITH SIDEWALK SHEET FOR ALTERNATE @ 24" 0O.C
NOTES: CONNECTION DETAIL ALTERNATE CONNECTION

1. SEE STANDARD PLAN SCG—4 FOR CURB, GUTTER, AND SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION NOTES.

2. NEITHER KEY NOR CONNECTING REBAR IS NECESSARY IF CURB & GUTTER ARE POURED
MONOLITHICALY WITH SIDEWALK.

SHEET 1 OF 2
VERTICALS%%ITNBA’\LEUTTER & CITYsT%EARSA\J;YXCA\TER
DRAWN: | VP NO.
APPROVED AE | 8174 1 SCG—1
REV. BY COMMUNTTY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCAE | NTS




PL

VARIES, 10' TYP. FL
5' VARIES, 5' TYP.
B MIN. HD LANDSCAPING e
1%”
_L 1.5% MAX. SLOPE 1.0% MIN. SLOPE i
o |ty L DN
T /\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/\\/
SEE NOTE = VNI NS
NO. 8, SCG—4 / KEY AT BACK OF CURB MAY BE OMITTED
SEE NOTE WHEN ADJACENT TO LANDSCAPING
NO. 6, SCG—4

6" MIN. AB AT
95% RELATIVE

COMPACTION
PROPERTY LINE

SECTION A—A AT TREEWELL OR LANDSCAPE STRIP

* DIMENSIONS ARE TYPICAL,
70, AND MAY VARY.

WEAKENED

WEAKENED PLANE JOINT, SEE FIG. 1
PLANE JOINT

AND NOTE NO. 4, SCG-4
6" AB.

VERTICAL CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALK WITH TREE WELLS OR LANDSCAPING

[ :Q
()
3/8" R, TYP. \U

4 ]
4 a X — AqA
<

[an] 4
.

SEE NOTE NO. s S
FIGURE 1 6, SCG—4 FIGURE 2 FIGURE 3
WEAKENED PLANE JOINT EXPANSION JOINT SCORE _MARK
CITY OF ATWATER
SIDEWALK DETAILS STANDARD DETAIL
DRAWN: JV.P NO.
DATE: 09.17.24 _
APPROVED SCG—-2
BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




NOTES:

1.

o &> o

10.
1.

12.

13.
14.

15.
16.

17.
18.

CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, AND ALL P.C.C. FLATWORK SHALL HAVE A FINE HAIR LIGHT BROOM
FINISH; CURB AND GUTTER PARALLEL TO THE FLOW LINE.

CONSTRUCT EXPANSION JOINTS 60' ON CENTER MAXIMUM, AND AT RETURNS, LIGHT POLES,
HYDRANTS, CATCH BASINS, BOTH SIDES OF DRIVEWAYS, AND OTHER FIXED OBJECTS. USE 1/4"
PREFORMED JOINT FILLER PER CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE CURRENT
CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

WEAKENED PLANE JOINTS, CONTRACTION JOINTS, AND EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE TOOLED OR
FORMED, SAW CUTTING IS NOT ALLOWED.

INSTALL EXPANSION JOINTS, WEAKENED PLANE JOINTS AND SCORE MARKS AS INDICATED IN THE
PLANS OR STANDARD DETAILS. SEE STANDARD PLAN SCG—2 FOR JOINT DETAILS.

PLACE 5/8" X 24" LONG STEEL DOWELS PER STANDARD DETAILS THROUGH EVERY EXPANSION
JOINT, GREASED AND WRAPPED ON ONE SIDE.

SIDEWALKS: INSTALL DOWELS EVENLY SPACED AT 16'" MAX., ON CENTER. OFFSET DOWELS A
MINIMUM OF 6'" FROM SIDEWALK EDGES. INSTALL A MINIMUM OF THREE DOWELS IN A 5—FOOT
SIDEWALK, AND A MINIMUM OF 5 DOWELS IN AN 8-FOOT SIDEWALK.

VERTICAL CURB AND CURB & GUTTER: INSTALL DOWELS EVENLY SPACED AND CENTERED IN
CONCRETE SECTION, WITH A MIN. CLEARANCE OF 3" FROM EDGES OF CONCRETE.

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO SECTION 73, CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS,
EXCEPT AS MODIFIED HEREIN.

FOR SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION, PLACE 4'' MINIMUM OF CLASS Il AGGREGATE BASE UNDER THE
CONCRETE AND COMPACT TO A MINIMUM OF 90%. SUBGRADE BENEATH AGGREGATE BASE SHALL BE
SCARIFIED AND COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM OF 90% FOR A DEPTH OF 6'".

SUB—-GRADE BENEATH COMPACTED AGGREGATE BASE FOR CURB, GUTTER, AND DRIVEWAYS SHALL
BE SCARIFIED AND COMPACTED TO A MINIMUM RELATIVE COMPACTION OF 95% TO A DEPTH OF 6'".
ALL EDGES SHALL BE ROUNDED TO A 1/2" RADIUS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

CONCRETE AND OTHER CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, DRIVEWAY, AND CURB RAMP MATERIALS SHALL
COMPLY WITH SECTION 73—1.02 OF THE CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. CONCRETE SHALL
BE MINOR CONCRETE COMPLYING WITH SECTION 90 AND 73—1.02 OF THE CALTRANS STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS.

DEPRESS A 2" HIGH LETTER 'W', 'S', OR 'I' FOR WATER LATERAL, SEWER LATERAL, OR IRRIGATION
SLEEVE LOCATION, 1/4'" DEEP INTO THE FACE OF CURB TO IDENTIFY SERVICE LOCATIONS.

WATER SHALL BE USED TO ENSURE PROPER DRAINAGE OF GUTTERS AT BOTH THE FINAL
WALK-THROUGH AND PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE ONE-YEAR WARRANTY.

IN AN EXISTING STREET, WHENEVER THE CURB AND GUTTER ARE REMOVED, SAWCUT EXISTING
STREET 2' OUT FROM LIP OF GUTTER MIN. & REPLACE WITH 8" DEEPLIFT OF ASPHALT CONCRETE,
MIN., OR MATCHING EXISTING SECTION IF THICKER. STREET CUT SHALL EXTEND 1' MIN. BEYOND
SAWCUT IN CURB AND GUTTER.

AN APPROVED SOIL STERILANT SHALL BE APPLIED TO ALL SUB—GRADE PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
CURB RETURNS SHALL HAVE A 25' RADIUS UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED OR APPROVED ON THE
PLANS.

CURB, GUTTER AND SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AFTER ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE IN
PLACE IN NEW SUBDIVISIONS.

CONCRETE CURING SHALL BE PER SECTION 90 OF THE CALTRANS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. ALL
CONCRETE SHALL BE TREATED WITH AN APPROVED WHITE—PIGMENTED CURING COMPOUND.

CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER & |CITY OF ATWATER

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION STANDARD DETAIL

STANDARDS DRAWN: | VP NO.

REV.

DATE: 09.17.24 _
APPROVED S C G 4
BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




TRANSITION RAMP

ROLL TYPE CURB & GUTTER

VERTICAL TYPE
CURB & GUTTER

6" T.0.C. FROM FL

FLOW LINE

3—D VIEW

NOTES:

1. MINIMUM TRANSITION LENGTH IS 5'-0". IF LESS THAN 5'-0", CITY ENGINEER MUST
APPROVE TRANSITION LENGTH.

2. TYPICAL LONGITUDINAL TRANSITION SLOPE IS 2.5%t. (MAXIMUM SHALL NOT EXCEED 5.0%)

ROLL CURB TO VERTICAL  |CITY_OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL
CURB TRANSITION
DRAWN: | VP NO.
DATE: | 09.18.24 _
APPROVED SCG—5
REV. BY COMMUNTTY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: | MTS




ROLL CURB AND ATTACHED

SIDEWALK WITHIN BULB X

SIDEWALK

FLOW LINE (R=40'-0")

\ PUBLIC UTILITIES
B\ EASEMENT

\
\
\
\
|
1
1
:
)
]
[
1
!

E / /
\ L1 /)0
\\\ ¢O //. /I
FLOW LINE — N2 /4 SEE SHEET 2, FOR
(R=57'-0") v [y 7 SIDEWALK TRANSITION
VERTICAL CURB — | | N2~ 7/ DETALL.
= ‘ /
N 4
PROPERTY LINE —1"| | |13 N7 10' P.ULE.
51 1)@ 10' FL TO PL
i 56'
5' .
p 36'

NOTES:

o8N OD>

THE MAXIMUM LENGTH OF CUL—DE-SACS SHALL BE 500'-0" FROM FACE OF CURB TO THE
CENTER OF BULB. ONLY IN INDUSTRIALLY ZONED AREAS MAY THE LENGTH BE INCREASED TO

A MAXIMUM OF 1000'-0", PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE MET:
STREET RIGHT—OF-WAY OF 60'-0" WITH 40'-0'"" BETWEEN CURBS.

TURN—AROUND CURB RADIUS OF 53'-0".

EMERGENCY ACCESS TO ANOTHER PUBLIC STREET MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE

MARSHAL.

GUTTER SLOPE AROUND BULBS SHALL BE 0.35% MINIMUM.

BULBS MAY BE OFFSET TO EITHER SIDE.

A 10'-0" EASEMENT IS REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND STREET TREE PLANTING.
WATER MAINS MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE "LOOPED'" BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

SHEET 1 OF 5

MINIMUM STANDARD
CUL-DE—SAC — 56" R/W

CITY OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL

DRAWN: JV.P NO.
DATE: 09.20.24 _
APPROVED ST 3
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




-

ROLL CURB

\

TRANSITION FROM s
ROLL CURB TO / )

VERTICAL CURB ,
END OF LANDSCAPE '/, " /
STRIP AT PROJECTED < / /
PROPERTY LINE . , //

N / I/

VERTICAL CURB
/

FLOW LINE (R=57'-0") '

PROPERTY LINE

5' SIDEWALK
PROPERTY LINE (R=47'-0")

I\ PUBLIC UTILITIES

EASEMENT

1
1
]
1
1
1
]
1
1
1
1
1
|
I
|
]

SIDEWALK TRANSITION DETAIL

SHEET 2 OF 5
DRAWN: JV.P NO.
APPROVED DAE: | 000 | ST—3
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




ROLL CURB AND ATTACHED

FLOW LINE (R=40'-0")
SIDEWALK WITHIN BULB

A, ,— PUBLIC UTILITIES
"/ EASEMENT
\ \
SIDEWALK \\ \
.
L
FLOW LINE ~— TRANSITION FROM
(R=57'-0") / VERTICAL TO ROLL

CURB. SEE SCG-5

10" P.U.E.
10' FL TO PL

NOTES:

THE MAXIMUM LENGTH OF CUL—DE-SACS SHALL BE 500'-0" FROM FACE OF CURB TO THE
CENTER OF BULB. ONLY IN INDUSTRIALLY ZONED AREAS MAY THE LENGTH BE INCREASED TO

A MAXIMUM OF 1000'-0", PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE MET:

A. STREET RIGHT—OF—WAY OF 60'-0" WITH 40'-0" BETWEEN CURBS.
B. TURN—AROUND CURB RADIUS OF 53'-0".
C. EMERGENCY ACCESS TO ANOTHER PUBLIC STREET MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE FIRE
MARSHAL.
2. GUTTER SLOPE AROUND BULBS SHALL BE 0.35% MINIMUM.
3. BULBS MAY BE OFFSET TO EITHER SIDE.
4, A 10'-0" EASEMENT IS REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND STREET TREE PLANTING.
5. WATER MAINS MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE 'LOOPED'" BY THE CITY ENGINEER.
SHEET 3 OF 5
MINIMUM STANDARD CITY OF ATWATER
STANDARD DETAIL
CUL-DE—-SAC - 60 R/W
DRAWN: JVP NO.
DATE: 09.20.24 _
APPROVED ST-3
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




T
N -
@
© _
[Te)
| o= CURB
& FLOWLINE
R/W
10" P.U.E.
28' 28'
56'
NOTES:

1. SUBMIT SPECIFIC DESIGN FOR R/W WIDTHS OTHER THAN 56'.

2. GUTTER SLOPE AROUND OUTER KNUCKLE FLOWLINE BULB AND REVERSE CURVES SHALL BE
0.35% MINIMUM.

SHEET 4 OF 5
KNUCKLE INTERSECTION — CHWL&E&?&&?TER
5 6 R /W DRAWN: JV.P NO.

DATE: 09.20.24 S T_ 3

REV.

APPROVED
BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




T z
M =) \ \
N \
3 A Y
- CURB Voo
o © FLOWLINE W = \ \
M Z =
. 3§ \ \
B | \
- =3
_____ . _NRN=1. ]
_/T o \ - ;]
10' P.U.E. ) ~ /
| /
| | . [~
o &) 18
| [
\1
o aha |
| | /
! |
| |
| |
| 1 ! |
20' 20'
30' 30'
60"
NOTES:
1. SUBMIT SPECIFIC DESIGN FOR R/W WIDTHS OTHER THAN 56' OR 60'.
2. GUTTER SLOPE AROUND OUTER KNUCKLE FLOWLINE BULB AND REVERSE CURVES SHALL BE
0.35% MINIMUM.
SHEET 5 OF 5
KNUCKLE INTERSECTION — CITY OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL

60" R/W

DRAWN: JV.P NO.

DATE: 09.20.24 —
APPROVED ST 3
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




LANDSCAPE STRIP

PL

PL

56' R/W
10! FL 18' C.L. 18' FL 10!
4! 6! 5' l
5 SW
SW 7"
1'
1.5%

L ROLL CURB AND GUTTER

SIDEWALK, (SEE SCG—1 )

SEE SCG-2

MINIMUM PAVEMENT STRUCTURAL SECTION: 23" —

HMA ON 4" CLASS Il AB COMPACTED TO 95%
R.D. ACTUAL PAVEMENT STRUCTURAL SECTION TO

BE BASED ON TI=5.0 AND R-VALUE TESTING.

COMPACT SUBGRADE TO A MINIMUM

OF 95% R.D. FOR A MINIMUM OF 6"
BELOW STRUCTURAL SECTION.

0.03' (3/8") IN ADDITION TO
REQUIRED A.C.  PAVEMENT SECTION

PAVING DETAIL AT
LIP OF GUTTER

NOTES:

1.

LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREETS MAY BE CONSTRUCTED WITH EITHER ROLL CURB AND GUTTER OR

VERTICAL CURB AND GUTTER.

2. CURB RETURNS, CURB RAMPS, AND CATCH BASINS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH VERTICAL CURB.

SIDEWALK, SEE
SCG-2

LANDSCAPE STRIP

A2—-6 VERTICAL CURB &
GUTTER, SEE SCG-1.

LOCAL STREETS

RESIDENTIAL AND CUL-DE-SACS

CITY OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL

DRAWN:

JV.P NO.
DATE: 09.18.24 _
APPROVED S T 8
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NT.S




/ PROPERTY

LINE

PROPERTY LINE —\

6' MIN. '
WALL ' 6" MIN.
56' R/W WALL
o ] 15' F|; 26' fi 15! il o
i SEE ' ' SEE i
{\//IAII; | | NOTE 13 13 - NOTE L1 MIN.
s e 0 1 VAR
i " ClL. " i
- . 6” 6” -
- | -
. | | .
iax_ 1.5% 2 — oy —= 2 15% il |
| SRS (oD f’» T S (e s - “ i
SIDEWALK SIDEWALK

A2—-6 VERTICAL TYPE CURB
& GUTTER (SEE SCG-1)

COMPACT SUBGRADE TO A MINIMUM
OF 95% R.D. FOR A MINIMUM OF

6" BELOW STRUCTURAL SECTION.

MINIMUM PAVEMENT STRUCTURAL SECTION: 23"
HMA ON 5'" CLASS Il AB COMPACTED TO 95%
R.D. ACTUAL PAVEMENT STRUCTURAL SECTION TO
BE BASED ON TI=6.0 AND R-VALUE TESTING.

0.03' (3/8") IN ADDITION TO
REQUIRED A.C.  PAVEMENT SECTION

PAVING DETAIL AT

NOTES: LIP OF GUTTER

1. ON-STREET PARKING IS PROHIBITED FOR THIS STREET TYPE.

2. MEANDERING SIDEWALK TO MAINTAIN 2'-0" MINIMUM FROM PROPERTY LINE.

3. IF HOUSES ARE ALLOWED TO FACE ONE SIDE OF BACK—UP RESIDENTIAL COLLECTOR, THAT HALF OF
STREET SECTION SHALL MATCH LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREET DESIGN AND THE STREET SEDCTION
SHALL BE CLEARLY ILLUSTRATED ON THE TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP.

SHEET 1 OF 2

COLLECTOR STREET CITY OF ATWATER

STANDARD DETAIL

BACK—UP RESIDENTIAL

DRAWN: JV.P NO.
DATE: 09.18.24 _
APPROVED ST 9
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




>

f

BACK OF
LOTS

[E—

ﬂ

RIGHT OF WAY MASONRY
\ ( WALL
Inl
C.L - - - - \ '

\— VERTICAL CURB, GUTTER,
AND MEANDERING SIDEWALK

-

/— PROPERTY LINE

FL . | /— BACK OF LOTS
— — 2'
MIN.
VAR FACE OF WALL
C.L.
8! = AND STREET R/W
MIN. T
. - |z
4:1 © p=
1.5% MAX

\ SEE NOTE #1
VERTICAL CURB, GUTTER,

AND MEANDERING SIDEWALK
SECTION A-A

NOTES:

1. MASONRY WALL TO RESTRICT ACCESS TO LOTS ADJACENT TO STREET RIGHT-OF—WAY AND PUBLIC
OPEN SPACE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED BY DEVELOPER/OWNER IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY
REQUIREMENTS AND SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER. PLANS TO PROVIDE
ELEVATION AT BOTTOM OF WALL AND BACK OF WALK.

SHEET 2 OF 2
IMPROVEMENTS FOR CITY OF ATWATER
COLLECTOR STREET STANDARD DETAIL

BACK—UP RESIDENTIAL DRAWN: | VP NO.

DATE: 09.18.24 —
APPROVED ST 9
REV. BY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT SCALE: NTS




~

PLANNING COMMISSION
PLANNING COMMISSION tagancieep okt

AGENDA REPORT Donald Borgwardt lleisha Sanders

Harold Kadach WMayra Sanchez-Garcia

N

J

MEETING DATE: October 16, 2024

TO: Chair and Commissioners
FROM: Kayla Rashad, Executive Assistant
SUBJECT: Public hearing to consider adopting a resolution recommending

City Council adopt a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment
amending Chapter 17.28 “Accessory Dwelling Units” of the
Atwater Municipal Code to comply with recent changes in State
law; and finding the action to be statutorily exempt from CEQA
under section 21080.17 of the Public Resources Code.

RECOMMENDED COMMISSION ACTION:

It is recommended that Planning Commission:

1. Open the public hearing and receive any testimony from the public; and,
2. Close the public hearing; and,
3. Make a finding that the project is statutorily exempt from review under the

California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Public Resources Code
section 21080.17; and adopt Resolution No. 0259-24 Recommending the City
Council Adopt Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment No. 24-28-0100 amending
Chapter 17.28 “Accessory Dwelling Units” of the Atwater Municipal Code to comply
with recent changes in State law.

l. BACKGROUND:

In recent years, the California Legislature has approved, and the Governor has signed
into law, a number of bills that, among other things, amended various sections of the
Government Code to impose new limits on local authority to regulate ADUs and JADUs.
In 2024, the California Legislature approved, and the Governor signed into law, two new
bills — AB 2533 and SB 1211 — that further amend state ADU law as summarized below.




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0259-24 Page 2

ANALYSIS:
AB 2533 — Unpermitted ADUs and JADUs

Subject to limited exceptions, existing state law prohibits a city from denying a permit to
legalize an unpermitted ADU that was constructed before January 1, 2018, if the denial
is based on the ADU not complying with applicable building, state, or local ADU
standards. One exception allows a city to deny a permit to legalize if the city makes a
written finding that correcting the violation is necessary to protect the health and safety of
the public or the occupants of the structure.

AB 2533 changes this by: (1) expanding the above prohibition to also include JADUs;
(2) moving the construction-cutoff date from January 1, 2018, to January 1, 2020; and
(3) replacing the above exception with a requirement that local agencies find that
correcting the violation is necessary to comply with the standards specified in Health and
Safety Code section 17920.3 (Substandard Buildings). (See amended Gov. Code,
§ 66332(a)—(f).)

SB 1211 - Replacement Parking Requirements; Multifamily ADUs
Replacement Parking

Existing state law prohibits the City from requiring off-street parking spaces to be replaced
when a garage, carport, or covered parking structure is demolished in conjunction with
the construction of, or conversion to, an ADU.

SB 1211 amends this prohibition to now also prohibit a city from requiring replacement
parking when an uncovered parking space is demolished for or replaced with an ADU.
(See amended Gov. Code, § 66314(d)(11).)

Multifamily ADUs

SB 1211 further defines livable space in connection with converted ADUs inside a
multifamily dwelling structure. Existing state law requires the City to ministerially approve
qualifying building-permit applications for ADUs within “portions of existing multifamily
dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, including, but not limited to, storage
rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages ....” The term “livable
space” is not defined by existing state ADU law.

SB 1211 changes this by adding a new definition: “Livable space’ means a space in a
dwelling intended for human habitation, including living, sleeping, eating, cooking, or
sanitation.” (See amended Gov. Code, § 66313(e).)

SB 1211 also increases the number of detached ADUs that lots with an existing
multifamily dwelling can have. Existing state law allows a lot with an existing or proposed
multifamily dwelling to have up to two detached ADUs.



Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0259-24 Page 3

Under SB 1211, a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling can have up to eight detached
ADUs, or as many detached ADUs as there are primary dwelling units on the lot,
whichever is less. (See amended Gov. Code, § 66323(a)(4)(A)(ii).) SB 1211 does not
alter the number of ADUs that a lot with a proposed multifamily dwelling can have — the
limit remains at two. (See amended Gov. Code, § 66323(a)(4).)

Il FISCAL IMPACTS:

No negative fiscal impacts are anticipated with the approval of this project. This item
has been reviewed by the Finance Department.

M. LEGAL REVIEW:

This item has been reviewed by the City Attorney.

IV.  EXISTING POLICY:

Both AB 2533 and SB 1211 take effect January 1, 2025. To remain valid, the City’s ADU
ordinance must comply with requirements imposed by AB 2533 and SB 1211. Adopting
the proposed ordinance ensures that the City’s ADU ordinance will be valid under AB
2533 and SB 121.

The proposed ordinance does not conflict with any policies of the General Plan or other
City policies or guidelines

V. INTERDEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION:

An interdepartmental routing sheet was sent to all required departments and affected
agencies for review, and their comments and conditions have been incorporated.

VI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

The public hearing was adequately noticed and advertised for the regularly scheduled
Planning Commission hearing. The public will have the opportunity to provide comments
on this item prior to Planning Commission action.

VIl. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

Under California Public Resources Code section 21080.17, CEQA does not apply
to the adoption of an ordinance by a city or county implementing the provisions of
Article 2 of Chapter 13 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code, which is
California’s ADU law, and which also regulates JADUs, as defined by section
66313. Therefore, the adoption of the proposed ordinance is statutorily exempt
from CEQA in that it implements state ADU law.

VIIl. STEPS FOLLOWING APPROVAL.:




Agenda Report — Resolution No. 0259-24 Page 4

Following adoption of Resolution No. 0259-24, the recommendation will be forwarded to
the City Council for consideration.

Prepared by: Kayla Rashad, Executive Assistant

Submitted by: Greg Thompson, Deputy City Manager / Community Development
Director

Attachments:
1. RSO No. 0259-24 Resolution
2. Draft Ordinance
3. Exhibit A



PLANNING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ATWATER

RESOLUTION NO. 0259-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ATWATER
RECOMMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT NO.
24-28-0100 AMENDING CHAPTER 17.28:
“ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS” OF THE
ATWATER MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH
RECENT CHANGES IN STATE LAW AND
FINDING THE ACTION TO BE STATUTORILY
EXEMPT FROM CEQA UNDER PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE § 21080.17.

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Law authorizes cities to act by ordinance to provide
for the creation and regulation of accessory dwelling units (“ADUs”) and junior accessory
dwelling units (“JADUs”); and,

WHEREAS, in recent years, the California Legislature has approved, and the Governor
has signed into law, a number of bills that, among other things, amend various sections
of the Government Code to impose new limits on local authority to regulate ADUs and
JADUs; and

WHEREAS, in 2024, the California Legislature approved, and the Governor signed into
law, Assembly Bill 2533 (“AB 2533”) and Senate Bill 1211 (“SB 1211”), which further
amend state ADU law; and,

WHEREAS, AB 2533 and SB 1211 take effect on January 1, 2025, and for the City’s ADU
ordinance to remain valid, it must be amended to reflect the requirements of AB 2533 and
SB 1211; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend its local regulatory scheme for the construction of
ADUs and JADUSs to reflect AB 2533’s and SB 1211’s changes to state law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing as required by
law on October 16, 2024; and,



Planning Commission Resolution No. 0259-24 Page 2

WHEREAS, this project is statutorily exempt from California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) under Public Resources Code § 21080.17; and,

WHEREAS, __ person(s) spoke in favor of the ordinance, __ person(s) spoke in
opposition of the ordinance, and __ written comment(s) have been submitted either in
opposition or in favor of the ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the ZOTA will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare
of the neighborhood, nor have any adverse effect on the community; and,

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred; and,

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the following findings can be made for
ZOTA No. 24-28-0100:

1. The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Atwater General Plan.

Adoption of the resolution recommending the City Council adopt the proposed
ordinance is statutorily exempt from CEQA under Public Resources Code
§ 21080.17.

The public hearing for this project has been adequately noticed and advertised.

The project will not have a detrimental effect on the health, safety, and welfare of the
neighborhood or any adverse effects on the community.

~w

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission of the City of
Atwater does hereby recommend that the City Council adopt ZOTA No. 24-28-0100 as
follows:

SECTION 1. Incorporation. The recitals above are true and correct and are each
incorporated by reference and adopted as findings by the Planning Commission.

SECTION 2. CEQA. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council find
that, under California Public Resources Code section 21080.17, the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) does not apply to the adoption of an ordinance by a
city or county implementing the provisions of Article 2 of Chapter 13 of Division 1 of Title 7
of the California Government Code, which is California’s ADU law and which also
regulates JADUs, as defined by section 66313. Therefore, adoption of the proposed
ordinance is statutorily exempt from CEQA in that it implements state ADU law.

SECTION 3. General Plan. The Planning Commission hereby finds that the adoption of
the Ordinance is consistent with the General Plan as a matter of law under Government
Code section 66314(c).

SECTION 4. Recommendation. Given the foregoing, and based on the entire record
before the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the
City Council adopt the ordinance attached hereto as “Draft Ordinance” and the draft code
amendment attached hereto as “Exhibit A.”




Planning Commission Resolution No. 0259-24 Page 3

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Resolution takes effect immediately upon adoption.

SECTION 6. Certification; Records. The Planning Commission Secretary shall attest as
to the adoption of this Resolution and cause the same to be maintained in the permanent
records of the City.

The foregoing resolution is hereby adopted this 16" day of October, 2024.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:
APPROVED:
DON BORGWARDT,
CHAIR

ATTEST:

GREG THOMPSON,

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR



CITY COUNCIL
OF THE
CITY OF ATWATER

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF ATWATER ADOPTING ZONING
ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT NO. 24-28-0100
AMENDING CHAPTER 17.28: “ACCESSORY
DWELLING UNITS” OF THE ATWATER
MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH RECENT
CHANGES IN STATE LAW AND FINDING THE
ACTION TO BE STATUTORILY EXEMPT FROM
CEQA UNDER PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE
§ 21080.17.

WHEREAS, the City of Atwater, California is a municipal corporation, duly organized
under the constitution and laws of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, state law authorizes cities to act by ordinance to provide for the creation and
regulation of accessory dwelling units (“ADUs”) and junior accessory dwelling units
(“JADUSs"); and

WHEREAS, in recent years, the California Legislature has approved, and the Governor
has signed into law, numerous bills that, among other things, amend various sections of
the Government Code to impose new limits on local authority to regulate ADUs and
JADUs; and

WHEREAS, in 2024, the California Legislature approved, and the Governor signed into
law, Assembly Bill 2533 (“AB 2533”) and Senate Bill 1211 (“SB 1211”), which further
amend state ADU law; and

WHEREAS, AB 2533 and SB 1211 take effect on January 1, 2025, and for the City’s ADU
ordinance to remain valid, it must be amended to reflect the requirements of AB 2533 and
SB 1211; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend its local regulatory scheme for the construction of
ADUs and JADUSs to reflect AB 2533’s and SB 1211’s changes to state law; and



City Council Ordinance No. XXXX Page 2

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2024, the Planning Commission held a duly-noticed public
hearing and considered the staff report, recommendations by staff, and public testimony
concerning this proposed Ordinance. Following the public hearing, the Planning
Commission voted to forward the Ordinance to the City Council with a recommendation
in favor of its adoption; and

WHEREAS, __ person(s) spoke in favor of the ordinance, __ person(s) spoke in
opposition of the ordinance, and __ written comment(s) have been submitted either in
opposition or in favor of the plans and specifications for the ordinance; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance would not have a detrimental effect on the health,
safety, and welfare of the neighborhood nor have any adverse effect on the community;
and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Atwater as
follows:

SECTION 1. Incorporation. The recitals above are each incorporated by reference and
adopted as findings by the City Council.

SECTION 2. CEQA. Under California Public Resources Code section 21080.17, the
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) does not apply to the adoption of an
ordinance by a city or county implementing the provisions of Article 2 of Chapter 13 of
Division 1 of Title 7 of the California Government Code, which is California’s ADU law and
which also regulates JADUs, as defined by section 66313. Therefore, adoption of the
Ordinance is statutorily exempt from CEQA in that it implements state ADU law.

SECTION 3. General Plan. The City Council hereby finds that the adoption of the
Ordinance is consistent with the General Plan as a matter of law under Government Code
section 66314(c).

SECTION 4. Code Amendment. Chapter 17.28: “Accessory Dwelling Units,” of the
Atwater Municipal Code is hereby amended and restated to read in its entirety as provided
in “Exhibit A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 5. Effective Date. Within fifteen (15) days from and after adoption, this
Ordinance shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and
published in Merced County and circulated in Atwater, in accordance with California
Government Code Section 36933. This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced thirty
(30) days after its adoption.

SECTION 6. HCD Submittal. In accordance with Government Code section 66326, the
City Clerk is directed to submit a copy of this Ordinance to the California Department of
Housing and Community Development within 60 days after adoption.




City Council Ordinance No. XXXX Page 3

SECTION 7. Publication. The City Clerk is directed to certify to the adoption of this
Ordinance and post or publish this Ordinance as required by law.

SECTION 8. Custodian of Records. The custodian of records for this Ordinance is the
City Clerk and the records comprising the administrative record are located at 1160 Fifth
St, Atwater, CA 95301.

SECTION 9. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person
or circumstance is held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity
has no effect on the other provisions or applications of the Ordinance that can be given
effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this extent, the provisions of this
Ordinance are severable. The City Council declares that it would have adopted this
Ordinance irrespective of the invalidity of any portion thereof.

INTRODUCED:
ADOPTED:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

MIKE NELSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

KORY J. BILLINGS, CITY CLERK



ADU REGULATIONS THAT COMPLY WITH SB 1211 & AB 2553 (2024)

CHAPTER 17.28: “ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS”

Section 17.28.010  Accessory Dwelling Units

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to allow and regulate accessory dwelling units
(ADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) in compliance with Chapter 13 of
Division 1 of Title 7 of the California Government Code.

B. Effect of Conforming. An ADU or JADU that conforms to the standards in this section will
not be:

(1) Deemed to be inconsistent with the city’s general plan and zoning designation for
the lot on which the ADU or JADU is located.

(2) Deemed to exceed the allowable density for the lot on which the ADU or JADU is
located.

3) Considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit
residential growth.

(4) Required to correct a nonconforming zoning condition, as defined in subsection
(c)(8) below. This does not prevent the city from enforcing compliance with
applicable building standards in accordance with Health and Safety Code section
17980.12.

C. Definitions. As used in this section, terms are defined as follows:

(1) “Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an attached or a detached residential
dwelling unit that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more
persons and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence. An
accessory dwelling unit also includes the following:

(A)  An efficiency unit, as defined by section 17958.1 of the California Health
and Safety Code; and

(B) A manufactured home, as defined by section 18007 of the California
Health and Safety Code.

(2) “Accessory structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a
dwelling located on the same lot.

3) “Complete independent living facilities” means permanent provisions for living,
sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family
or multifamily dwelling is or will be situated.

1

93939.00051\32452781.44



(4) “Director” means the Community Development Director for the City of Atwater
(5) “Efficiency kitchen” means a kitchen that includes all of the following:
(A) A cooking facility with appliances.

(B) A food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are of a reasonable
size in relation to the size of the JADU.

(6) “Junior accessory dwelling unit” or “JADU” means a residential unit that satisfies
all of the following:

(A)  Itis no more than 500 square feet in size.

(B) It is contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-family
structure. An enclosed use within the residence, such as an attached
garage, is considered to be a part of and contained within the single-family
structure.

(C)  Itincludes its own separate sanitation facilities or shares sanitation
facilities with the existing or proposed single-family structure.

(D)  If the unit does not include its own separate bathroom, then it contains an
interior entrance to the main living area of the existing or proposed single-
family structure in addition to an exterior entrance that is separate from the
main entrance to the primary dwelling.

(E)  Itincludes an efficiency kitchen, as defined in subsection (C)(5) above.

(7) “Livable space” means a space in a dwelling intended for human habitation,
including living, sleeping, eating, cooking, or sanitation.

(8) “Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including
basements and attics, but does not include a garage or any accessory structure.

9) “Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property
that does not conform with current zoning standards.

(10)  “Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends
from a street to one entrance of the ADU or JADU.

(11)  “Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application
and that meets the requirements for permitting.

(12)  “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train
station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of
transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to the
public.

93939.00051\32452781.44



(13) “Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway
or in any other location on a lot, lined up behind one another.

D. Approvals. The following approvals apply to ADUs and JADUs under this section:

(1) Building-permit Only. If an ADU or JADU complies with each of the general
requirements in subsection (e) below, it is allowed with only a building permit in
the following scenarios:

(A)

(B)

©)

93939.00051\32452781.44

Converted on Single-family Lot: One ADU as described in this
subsection (d)(1)(A) and one JADU on a lot with a proposed or existing
single-family dwelling on it, where the ADU or JADU:

(1) Is either: within the space of a proposed single-family dwelling;
within the existing space of an existing single-family dwelling; or
(in the case of an ADU only) within the existing space of an
accessory structure, plus up to 150 additional square feet if the
expansion is limited to accommodating ingress and egress; and

(11) Has exterior access that is independent of that for the single-family
dwelling; and

(ii1)  Has side and rear setbacks sufficient for fire and safety, as dictated
by applicable building and fire codes.

(iv)  The JADU complies with the requirements of Government Code
sections 66333 through 66339.

Limited Detached on Single-family Lot: One detached, new-
construction ADU on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family
dwelling (in addition to any JADU that might otherwise be established on
the lot under subsection (d)(1)(A) above), if the detached ADU satisfies
each of the following limitations:

(1) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four feet.
(11) The total floor area is 800 square feet or smaller.

(iii)  The peak height above grade does not exceed the applicable height
limit in subsection (e)(2) below.

Converted on Multifamily Lot: One or more ADUs within portions of
existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space,
including but not limited to storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways,
attics, basements, or garages, if each converted ADU complies with state
building standards for dwellings. Under this subsection (d)(1)(C), at least
one converted ADU is allowed within an existing multifamily dwelling,



(D)

up to a quantity equal to 25 percent of the existing multifamily dwelling
units.

Limited Detached on Multifamily Lot: No more than two detached
ADUs on a lot with a proposed multifamily dwelling, or up to eight
detached ADUs on a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling, if each
detached ADU satisfies all of the following:

(1) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four feet. If the
existing multifamily dwelling has a rear or side yard setback of
less than four feet, the city will not require any modification to the
multifamily dwelling as a condition of approving the ADU.

(11) The peak height above grade does not exceed the applicable height
limit provided in subsection (¢)(2) below.

(ii1))  If the lot has an existing multifamily dwelling, the quantity of
detached ADUs does not exceed the number of primary dwelling
units on the lot.

(2) ADU Permit.

(A)

(B)

Except as allowed under subsection (d)(1) above, no ADU may be created
without a building permit and an ADU permit in compliance with the
standards set forth in subsections (e) and (f) below.

The city may charge a fee to reimburse it for costs incurred in processing
ADU permits, including the costs of adopting or amending the city’s ADU
ordinance. The ADU-permit processing fee is determined by the director
of community development and approved by the city council by
resolution.

3) Process and Timing.

(A)

(B)

93939.00051\32452781.44

An ADU permit is considered and approved ministerially, without
discretionary review or a hearing.

The city must approve or deny an application to create an ADU or JADU
within 60 days from the date that the city receives a completed
application. If the city has not approved or denied the completed
application within 60 days, the application is deemed approved unless
either:

(1) The applicant requests a delay, in which case the 60-day time
period is tolled for the period of the requested delay, or

(11) When an application to create an ADU or JADU is submitted with
a permit application to create a new single-family or multifamily

4



©

(D)

dwelling on the lot, the city may delay acting on the permit
application for the ADU or JADU until the city acts on the permit
application to create the new single-family or multifamily
dwelling, but the application to create the ADU or JADU will still
be considered ministerially without discretionary review or a
hearing.

If the city denies an application to create an ADU or JADU, the city must
provide the applicant with comments that include, among other things, a
list of all the defective or deficient items and a description of how the
application may be remedied by the applicant. Notice of the denial and
corresponding comments must be provided to the applicant within the 60-
day time period established by subsection (d)(3)(B) above.

A demolition permit for a detached garage that is to be replaced with an
ADU is reviewed with the application for the ADU and issued at the same
time.

E. General ADU and JADU Requirements. The following requirements apply to all ADUs
and JADUs that are approved under subsections (d)(1) or (d)(2) above:

(1) Zoning.

(A)  An ADU subject only to a building permit under subsection (d)(1) above
may be created on a lot in a residential or mixed-use zone.

(B)  An ADU subject to an ADU permit under subsection (d)(2) above may be
created on a lot that is zoned to allow single-family dwelling residential
use or multifamily dwelling residential use.

(C)  Inaccordance with Government Code section 66333(a), a JADU may only
be created on a lot zoned for single-family residences.

(2) Height.

(A)  Except as otherwise provided by subsections (¢)(2)(B) and (e)(2)(C)
below, a detached ADU created on a lot with an existing or proposed
single family or multifamily dwelling unit may not exceed 16 feet in
height.

(B) A detached ADU may be up to 18 feet in height if it is created on a lot with

93939.00051\32452781.44

an existing or proposed single family or multifamily dwelling unit that is
located within one-half mile walking distance of a major transit stop or high
quality transit corridor, as those terms are defined in Section 21155 of the
Public Resources Code, and the ADU may be up to two additional feet in
height (for a maximum of 20 feet) if necessary to accommodate a roof pitch
on the ADU that is aligned with the roof pitch of the primary dwelling unit.



3)

(4)

)

(6)

(7

(C) A detached ADU created on a lot with an existing or proposed multifamily
dwelling that has more than one story above grade may not exceed 18 feet
in height.

(D)  An ADU that is attached to the primary dwelling may not exceed 25 feet
in height or the height limitation imposed by the underlying zone that
applies to the primary dwelling, whichever is lower. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, ADUs subject to this subsection (¢)(2)(D) may not exceed two
stories.

(E)  For purposes of this subsection (¢)(2), height is measured from existing
legal grade or the level of the lowest floor, whichever is lower, to the peak
of the structure.

Fire Sprinklers.

(A)  Fire sprinklers are required in an ADU if sprinklers are required in the
primary residence.

(B)  The construction of an ADU does not trigger a requirement for fire
sprinklers to be installed in the existing primary dwelling.

Rental Term. No ADU or JADU may be rented for a term that is shorter than 30
days. This prohibition applies regardless of when the ADU or JADU was created.

No Separate Conveyance. An ADU or JADU may be rented, but, except as
otherwise provided in Government Code section 66341, no ADU or JADU may
be sold or otherwise conveyed separately from the lot and the primary dwelling
(in the case of a single-family lot) or from the lot and all of the dwellings (in the
case of a multifamily lot).

Septic System. If the ADU or JADU will connect to an onsite wastewater-
treatment system, the owner must include with the application a percolation test
completed within the last five years or, if the percolation test has been recertified,
within the last 10 years.

Owner Occupancy.

(A)  ADUs created under this section on or after January 1, 2020 are not
subject to an owner-occupancy requirement.

(B)  Asrequired by state law, all JADUs are subject to an owner-occupancy
requirement. A natural person with legal or equitable title to the property
must reside on the property, in either the primary dwelling or JADU, as
the person’s legal domicile and permanent residence. However, the owner-
occupancy requirement in this subsection (e)(7)(B) does not apply if the
property is entirely owned by another governmental agency, land trust, or
housing organization.

93939.00051\32452781.44



(8) Deed Restriction. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for an ADU or
JADU, a deed restriction must be recorded against the title of the property in the
County Recorder’s office and a copy filed with the Director. The deed restriction
must run with the land and bind all future owners. The form of the deed restriction
will be provided by the city and must provide that:

(A)  Except as otherwise provided in Government Code section 66341, the
ADU or JADU may not be sold separately from the primary dwelling.

(B)  The ADU or JADU is restricted to the approved size and to other
attributes allowed by this section.

(C)  The deed restriction runs with the land and may be enforced against future
property owners.

(D)  The deed restriction may be removed if the owner eliminates the ADU or
JADU, as evidenced by, for example, removal of the kitchen facilities. To
remove the deed restriction, an owner may make a written request of the
Director, providing evidence that the ADU or JADU has in fact been
eliminated. The Director may then determine whether the evidence
supports the claim that the ADU or JADU has been eliminated. Appeal
may be taken from the Director’s determination consistent with other
provisions of this Code. If the ADU or JADU is not entirely physically
removed, but is only eliminated by virtue of having a necessary
component of an ADU or JADU removed, the remaining structure and
improvements must otherwise comply with applicable provisions of this
Code.

(E)  The deed restriction is enforceable by the director or his or her designee
for the benefit of the city. Failure of the property owner to comply with
the deed restriction may result in legal action against the property owner,
and the city is authorized to obtain any remedy available to it at law or
equity, including, but not limited to, obtaining an injunction enjoining the
use of the ADU or JADU in violation of the recorded restrictions or
abatement of the illegal unit.

9 Rent Reporting. In order to facilitate the city’s obligation to identify adequate
sites for housing in accordance with Government Code sections 65583.1 and
66330, the following requirements must be satisfied:

(A)  With the building-permit application, the applicant must provide the city
with an estimate of the projected annualized rent that will be charged for
the ADU or JADU.

(B)  Within 90 days after each January 1 following issuance of the building
permit, the owner must report the actual rent charged for the ADU or
JADU during the prior year. If the city does not receive the report within
the 90-day period, the owner is in violation of this Code, and the city may

7

93939.00051\32452781.44



send the owner a notice of violation and allow the owner another 30 days
to submit the report. If the owner fails to submit the report within the 30-
day period, the city may enforce this provision in accordance with
applicable law.

(10) Building & Safety.

(A)

(B)

Must comply with building code. Subject to subsection (e)(10)(B)
below, all ADUs and JADUs must comply with all local building code
requirements.

No change of occupancy. Construction of an ADU does not constitute a
Group R occupancy change under the local building code, as described in
Section 310 of the California Building Code, unless the building official or
Code Enforcement Division officer makes a written finding based on
substantial evidence in the record that the construction of the ADU could
have a specific, adverse impact on public health and safety. Nothing in this
subsection (¢)(10)(B) prevents the city from changing the occupancy code
of a space that was uninhabitable space or that was only permitted for
nonresidential use and was subsequently converted for residential use in
accordance with this section.

F. Specific ADU Requirements. The following requirements apply only to ADUs that require
an ADU permit under subsection (d)(2) above.

(1) Maximum Size.

(A)

(B)

©)

The maximum size of a detached or attached ADU subject to this
subsection (f) is 850 square feet for a studio or one-bedroom unit and
1,000 square feet for a unit with two or more bedrooms.

An attached ADU that is created on a lot with an existing primary
dwelling is further limited to 50 percent of the floor area of the existing
primary dwelling.

Application of other development standards in this subsection (f), such as
FAR or lot coverage, might further limit the size of the ADU, but no
application of the percent-based size limit in subsection (f)(1)(B) above or
of an FAR, front setback, lot coverage limit, or open-space requirement
may require the ADU to be less than 800 square feet.

(2) Floor Area Ratio (FAR). No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the
total FAR of the lot to exceed 45 percent, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.

93939.00051\32452781.44



)

4

)

(6)

(7)

Setbacks.

(A)  ADUs that are subject to this subsection (f) must conform to 4-foot side
and rear setbacks. ADUs that are subject to this subsection (f) must
conform to 25-foot front setbacks, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.

(B)  No setback is required for an ADU that is subject to this subsection (f) if
the ADU is constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions
as an existing structure.

Lot Coverage. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the total lot
coverage of the lot to exceed 50 percent, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.

Minimum Open Space. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the
total percentage of open space of the lot to fall below 50 percent, subject to
subsection (f)(1)(C) above.

Passageway. No passageway, as defined by subsection (c)(9) above, is required
for an ADU.

Parking.

(A)  Generally. One off-street parking space is required for each ADU. The
parking space may be provided in setback areas or as tandem parking, as
defined by subsection (c)(12) above.

(B)  Exceptions. No parking under subsection (f)(7)(A) is required in the
following situations:

(1) The ADU is located within one-half mile walking distance of
public transit, as defined in subsection (c)(11) above.

(11) The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically
significant historic district.

(ii1))  The ADU is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or
an accessory structure under subsection (d)(1)(A) above.

(iv)  When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the
occupant of the ADU.

(v) When there is an established car share vehicle stop located within
one block of the ADU.

(vi)  When the permit application to create an ADU is submitted with an
application to create a new single-family or new multifamily
dwelling on the same lot, provided that the ADU or the lot satisfies
any other criteria listed in subsections (f)(7)(B)(i) through (v) above.

93939.00051\32452781.44



(C)  No Replacement. When a garage, carport, covered parking structure, or
uncovered parking space is demolished in conjunction with the
construction of an ADU or converted to an ADU, those off-street parking
spaces are not required to be replaced.

(8) Architectural Requirements.

(A)  The materials and colors of the exterior walls, roof, and windows and
doors must be the same as those of the primary dwelling.

(B)  The roof slope must match that of the dominant roof slope of the primary
dwelling. The dominant roof slope is the slope shared by the largest
portion of the roof.

(C)  The exterior lighting must be limited to down-lights or as otherwise
required by the building or fire code.

(D)  The ADU must have an independent exterior entrance, apart from that of
the primary dwelling.

(E)  The interior horizontal dimensions of an ADU must be at least 10 feet
wide in every direction, with a minimum interior wall height of seven feet.

(F) No window or door of the ADU may have a direct line of sight to an
adjoining residential property. Each window and door must either be
located where there is no direct line of sight or screened using fencing,
landscaping, or privacy glass to prevent a direct line of sight.

(G)  All windows and doors in an ADU less than 30 feet from a property line
that is not a public right-of-way line must either be (for windows)
clerestory with the bottom of the glass at least six feet above the finished
floor, or (for windows and for doors) utilize frosted or obscure glass.

9) Landscape Requirements. Evergreen landscape screening must be planted and
maintained between the ADU and adjacent parcels as follows:

(A)  Atleast one 15-gallon size plant must be provided for every five linear
feet of exterior ADU wall. Alternatively, at least one 24” box size plant
must be provided for every ten linear feet of exterior ADU wall.

(B)  Plant specimens must be at least six feet tall when installed. As an
alternative, a solid fence of at least six feet in height may be installed.

(C)  All landscaping must be drought-tolerant.

(D)  All landscaping must be from the city’s approved plant list.

10

93939.00051\32452781.44



(10)  Historical Protections. An ADU that is on or within 600 feet of real property that
is listed in the California Register of Historic Resources must be located so as to
not be visible from any public right-of-way.

(11)  Allowed Stories. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may have more than one
story, except that an ADU that is attached to the primary dwelling may have the
stories allowed under subparagraph (e)(2)(D) of this section.

G. Fees. The following requirements apply to all ADUs that are approved under subsections
(d)(1) or (d)(2) above.

(1) Impact Fees.

(A)

(B)

No impact fee is required for an ADU that is less than 750 square feet in
size. For purposes of this subsection (g)(1), “impact fee” means a “fee”
under the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov. Code § 66000(b)) and a fee under the
Quimby Act (Gov. Code § 66477). “Impact fee” here does not include any
connection fee or capacity charge for water or sewer service.

Any impact fee that is required for an ADU that is 750 square feet or
larger in size must be charged proportionately in relation to the square
footage of the primary dwelling unit. (E.g., the floor area of the ADU,
divided by the floor area of the primary dwelling, times the typical fee
amount charged for a new dwelling.)

(2) Utility Fees.

(A)

(B)

©

93939.00051\32452781.44

If an ADU is constructed with a new single-family home, a separate utility
connection directly between the ADU and the utility and payment of the
normal connection fee and capacity charge for a new dwelling are
required.

Except as described in subsection (g)(2)(A), converted ADUs on a single-
family lot that are created under subsection (d)(1)(A) above are not
required to have a new or separate utility connection directly between the
ADU and the utility. Nor is a connection fee or capacity charge required.

Except as described in subsection (g)(2)(A), all ADUs that are not covered
by subsection (g)(2)(B) require a new, separate utility connection directly
between the ADU and the utility for any utility that is provided by the city.
All utilities that are not provided by the city are subject to the connection
and fee requirements of the utility provider.

(1) The connection is subject to a connection fee or capacity charge
that is proportionate to the burden created by the ADU based on
either the floor area or the number of drainage-fixture units (DFU)
values, as defined by the Uniform Plumbing Code, upon the water
or sewer system.

11



(11) The portion of the fee or charge that is charged by the city may not
exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service.

H. Nonconforming Zoning Code Conditions, Building Code Violations, and Unpermitted
Structures.

(1) Generally. The city will not deny an ADU or JADU application due to a
nonconforming zoning condition, building code violation, or unpermitted
structure on the lot that does not present a threat to the public health and safety
and that is not affected by the construction of the ADU or JADU.

(2) Unpermitted ADUs and JADUs constructed before 2020.

(A)  Permit to Legalize. As required by state law, the city may not deny a
permit to legalize an existing but unpermitted ADU or JADU that was
constructed before January 1, 2020, if denial is based on either of the
following grounds:

(1) The ADU or JADU violates applicable building standards, or

(11) The ADU or JADU does not comply with state ADU or JADU law
or this ADU ordinance (section NN.NNN).

(B)  Exceptions:

(1) Notwithstanding subsection (h)(2)(A) above, the city may deny a
permit to legalize an existing but unpermitted ADU or JADU that
was constructed before January 1, 2020, if the city makes a finding
that correcting a violation is necessary to comply with the
standards specified in California Health and Safety Code section
17920.3.

(i1) Subsection (h)(2)(A) above does not apply to a building that is
deemed to be substandard in accordance with California Health
and Safety Code section 17920.3.

I. Nonconforming ADUs and Discretionary Approval. Any proposed ADU or JADU that
would otherwise be allowed under this section but that does not conform to the objective
design or development standards set forth in subsections (a) through (h) of this section may
be allowed by the city with a conditional use permit, in accordance with the other provisions
of this title.

12

93939.00051\32452781.44



	PC Agenda 10.16.24.pdf
	PC Minutes 8.21.24.pdf
	ACTION MINUTES

	RSO 0255-24 Staff Report Packet.pdf
	RSO PC 0255-24 Staff Report-c1.pdf
	RSO PC 0255-24 Resolution-c1.pdf
	PC 255-24 Signed CUP Application.pdf
	PC 255-24 Operational Statement.pdf
	PC 255-24 Site Plan.pdf
	1. S.1
	S.1.2
	S.2
	S.3
	S.4
	S.5


	RSO 0256-24 Staff Report Packet.pdf
	RSO 0256-24 Staff Report.pdf
	 /
	PLANNING COMMISSION
	AGENDA REPORT 
	TO:    Chair and Commissioners

	RSO 0256-24 Resolution.pdf
	PLANNING COMMISSION

	Draft Ordinance.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL

	Exhibit A.pdf

	RSO 0258-24 Staff Report Packet
	RSO 0258-24 Staff Report.pdf
	 /
	PLANNING COMMISSION
	AGENDA REPORT 
	TO:    Chair and Commissioners

	RSO PC 0258-24 Resolution.pdf
	PLANNING COMMISSION

	PC Exhibit A.pdf
	Exhibit A
	DR-1
	Sheets and Views
	20240917_standard plans-DR-1
	20240917_standard plans-DR-1 (2)


	SCG-1_roll curb
	Sheets and Views
	SCG-1_ROLL CURB


	SCG-1_vertical curb
	Sheets and Views
	SCG-1


	SCG-2
	Sheets and Views
	SCG-2


	SCG-4
	Sheets and Views
	SCG-4


	SCG-5
	Sheets and Views
	SCG-5


	ST-3
	Sheets and Views
	20240917_standard plans-ST-3
	20240917_standard plans-ST-3 (2)
	20240917_standard plans-ST-3(4)
	20240917_standard plans-ST3-3
	20240917_standard plans-ST3-3 (5)


	ST-8
	Sheets and Views
	ST-8


	ST-9
	Sheets and Views
	20240917_standard plans-ST-9
	20240917_standard plans-ST-9 (2)




	RSO 0259-24 Staff Report Packet.pdf
	RSO 0259-24 Staff Report.pdf
	 /
	PLANNING COMMISSION
	AGENDA REPORT 
	TO:    Chair and Commissioners

	RSO 0259-24 Resolution.pdf
	PLANNING COMMISSION

	Draft Ordinance.pdf
	CITY COUNCIL

	Exhibit A.pdf
	CHAPTER 17.28: “ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS”
	Section 17.28.010 Accessory Dwelling Units
	A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to allow and regulate accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and junior accessory dwelling units (JADUs) in compliance with Chapter 13 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the California Government Code.
	B. Effect of Conforming. An ADU or JADU that conforms to the standards in this section will not be:
	(1) Deemed to be inconsistent with the city’s general plan and zoning designation for the lot on which the ADU or JADU is located.
	(2) Deemed to exceed the allowable density for the lot on which the ADU or JADU is located.
	(3) Considered in the application of any local ordinance, policy, or program to limit residential growth.
	(4) Required to correct a nonconforming zoning condition, as defined in subsection (c)(8) below. This does not prevent the city from enforcing compliance with applicable building standards in accordance with Health and Safety Code section 17980.12.

	C. Definitions. As used in this section, terms are defined as follows:
	(1) “Accessory dwelling unit” or “ADU” means an attached or a detached residential dwelling unit that provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons and is located on a lot with a proposed or existing primary residence. An acc...
	(A) An efficiency unit, as defined by section 17958.1 of the California Health and Safety Code; and
	(B) A manufactured home, as defined by section 18007 of the California Health and Safety Code.

	(2) “Accessory structure” means a structure that is accessory and incidental to a dwelling located on the same lot.
	(3) “Complete independent living facilities” means permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as the single-family or multifamily dwelling is or will be situated.
	(4) “Director” means the Community Development Director for the City of Atwater
	(5) “Efficiency kitchen” means a kitchen that includes all of the following:
	(A) A cooking facility with appliances.
	(B) A food preparation counter and storage cabinets that are of a reasonable size in relation to the size of the JADU.

	(6) “Junior accessory dwelling unit” or “JADU” means a residential unit that satisfies all of the following:
	(A) It is no more than 500 square feet in size.
	(B) It is contained entirely within an existing or proposed single-family structure. An enclosed use within the residence, such as an attached garage, is considered to be a part of and contained within the single-family structure.
	(C) It includes its own separate sanitation facilities or shares sanitation facilities with the existing or proposed single-family structure.
	(D) If the unit does not include its own separate bathroom, then it contains an interior entrance to the main living area of the existing or proposed single-family structure in addition to an exterior entrance that is separate from the main entrance t...
	(E) It includes an efficiency kitchen, as defined in subsection (C)(5) above.

	(7) “Livable space” means a space in a dwelling intended for human habitation, including living, sleeping, eating, cooking, or sanitation.
	(8) “Living area” means the interior habitable area of a dwelling unit, including basements and attics, but does not include a garage or any accessory structure.
	(9) “Nonconforming zoning condition” means a physical improvement on a property that does not conform with current zoning standards.
	(10) “Passageway” means a pathway that is unobstructed clear to the sky and extends from a street to one entrance of the ADU or JADU.
	(11) “Proposed dwelling” means a dwelling that is the subject of a permit application and that meets the requirements for permitting.
	(12) “Public transit” means a location, including, but not limited to, a bus stop or train station, where the public may access buses, trains, subways, and other forms of transportation that charge set fares, run on fixed routes, and are available to ...
	(13) “Tandem parking” means that two or more automobiles are parked on a driveway or in any other location on a lot, lined up behind one another.

	D. Approvals. The following approvals apply to ADUs and JADUs under this section:
	(1) Building-permit Only. If an ADU or JADU complies with each of the general requirements in subsection (e) below, it is allowed with only a building permit in the following scenarios:
	(A) Converted on Single-family Lot: One ADU as described in this subsection (d)(1)(A) and one JADU on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling on it, where the ADU or JADU:
	(i) Is either: within the space of a proposed single-family dwelling; within the existing space of an existing single-family dwelling; or (in the case of an ADU only) within the existing space of an accessory structure, plus up to 150 additional squar...
	(ii) Has exterior access that is independent of that for the single-family dwelling; and
	(iii) Has side and rear setbacks sufficient for fire and safety, as dictated by applicable building and fire codes.
	(iv) The JADU complies with the requirements of Government Code sections 66333 through 66339.

	(B) Limited Detached on Single-family Lot: One detached, new-construction ADU on a lot with a proposed or existing single-family dwelling (in addition to any JADU that might otherwise be established on the lot under subsection (d)(1)(A) above), if the...
	(i) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four feet.
	(ii) The total floor area is 800 square feet or smaller.
	(iii) The peak height above grade does not exceed the applicable height limit in subsection (e)(2) below.

	(C) Converted on Multifamily Lot: One or more ADUs within portions of existing multifamily dwelling structures that are not used as livable space, including but not limited to storage rooms, boiler rooms, passageways, attics, basements, or garages, if...
	(D) Limited Detached on Multifamily Lot: No more than two detached ADUs on a lot with a proposed multifamily dwelling, or up to eight detached ADUs on a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling, if each detached ADU satisfies all of the following:
	(i) The side- and rear-yard setbacks are at least four feet. If the existing multifamily dwelling has a rear or side yard setback of less than four feet, the city will not require any modification to the multifamily dwelling as a condition of approvin...
	(ii) The peak height above grade does not exceed the applicable height limit provided in subsection (e)(2) below.
	(iii) If the lot has an existing multifamily dwelling, the quantity of detached ADUs does not exceed the number of primary dwelling units on the lot.


	(2) ADU Permit.
	(A) Except as allowed under subsection (d)(1) above, no ADU may be created without a building permit and an ADU permit in compliance with the standards set forth in subsections (e) and (f) below.
	(B) The city may charge a fee to reimburse it for costs incurred in processing ADU permits, including the costs of adopting or amending the city’s ADU ordinance. The ADU-permit processing fee is determined by the director of community development and ...

	(3) Process and Timing.
	(A) An ADU permit is considered and approved ministerially, without discretionary review or a hearing.
	(B) The city must approve or deny an application to create an ADU or JADU within 60 days from the date that the city receives a completed application. If the city has not approved or denied the completed application within 60 days, the application is ...
	(i) The applicant requests a delay, in which case the 60-day time period is tolled for the period of the requested delay, or
	(ii) When an application to create an ADU or JADU is submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family or multifamily dwelling on the lot, the city may delay acting on the permit application for the ADU or JADU until the city acts on t...

	(C) If the city denies an application to create an ADU or JADU, the city must provide the applicant with comments that include, among other things, a list of all the defective or deficient items and a description of how the application may be remedied...
	(D) A demolition permit for a detached garage that is to be replaced with an ADU is reviewed with the application for the ADU and issued at the same time.


	E. General ADU and JADU Requirements. The following requirements apply to all ADUs and JADUs that are approved under subsections (d)(1) or (d)(2) above:
	(1) Zoning.
	(A) An ADU subject only to a building permit under subsection (d)(1) above may be created on a lot in a residential or mixed-use zone.
	(B) An ADU subject to an ADU permit under subsection (d)(2) above may be created on a lot that is zoned to allow single-family dwelling residential use or multifamily dwelling residential use.
	(C) In accordance with Government Code section 66333(a), a JADU may only be created on a lot zoned for single-family residences.

	(2) Height.
	(A) Except as otherwise provided by subsections (e)(2)(B) and (e)(2)(C) below, a detached ADU created on a lot with an existing or proposed single family or multifamily dwelling unit may not exceed 16 feet in height.
	(B) A detached ADU may be up to 18 feet in height if it is created on a lot with an existing or proposed single family or multifamily dwelling unit that is located within one-half mile walking distance of a major transit stop or high quality transit c...
	(C) A detached ADU created on a lot with an existing or proposed multifamily dwelling that has more than one story above grade may not exceed 18 feet in height.
	(D) An ADU that is attached to the primary dwelling may not exceed 25 feet in height or the height limitation imposed by the underlying zone that applies to the primary dwelling, whichever is lower. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ADUs subject to this ...
	(E) For purposes of this subsection (e)(2), height is measured from existing legal grade or the level of the lowest floor, whichever is lower, to the peak of the structure.

	(3) Fire Sprinklers.
	(A) Fire sprinklers are required in an ADU if sprinklers are required in the primary residence.
	(B) The construction of an ADU does not trigger a requirement for fire sprinklers to be installed in the existing primary dwelling.

	(4) Rental Term. No ADU or JADU may be rented for a term that is shorter than 30 days. This prohibition applies regardless of when the ADU or JADU was created.
	(5) No Separate Conveyance. An ADU or JADU may be rented, but, except as otherwise provided in Government Code section 66341, no ADU or JADU may be sold or otherwise conveyed separately from the lot and the primary dwelling (in the case of a single-fa...
	(6) Septic System. If the ADU or JADU will connect to an onsite wastewater-treatment system, the owner must include with the application a percolation test completed within the last five years or, if the percolation test has been recertified, within t...
	(7) Owner Occupancy.
	(A) ADUs created under this section on or after January 1, 2020 are not subject to an owner-occupancy requirement.
	(B) As required by state law, all JADUs are subject to an owner-occupancy requirement. A natural person with legal or equitable title to the property must reside on the property, in either the primary dwelling or JADU, as the person’s legal domicile a...

	(8) Deed Restriction. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for an ADU or JADU, a deed restriction must be recorded against the title of the property in the County Recorder’s office and a copy filed with the Director. The deed restriction mu...
	(A) Except as otherwise provided in Government Code section 66341, the ADU or JADU may not be sold separately from the primary dwelling.
	(B) The ADU or JADU is restricted to the approved size and to other attributes allowed by this section.
	(C) The deed restriction runs with the land and may be enforced against future property owners.
	(D) The deed restriction may be removed if the owner eliminates the ADU or JADU, as evidenced by, for example, removal of the kitchen facilities. To remove the deed restriction, an owner may make a written request of the Director, providing evidence t...
	(E) The deed restriction is enforceable by the director or his or her designee for the benefit of the city. Failure of the property owner to comply with the deed restriction may result in legal action against the property owner, and the city is author...

	(9) Rent Reporting. In order to facilitate the city’s obligation to identify adequate sites for housing in accordance with Government Code sections 65583.1 and 66330, the following requirements must be satisfied:
	(A) With the building-permit application, the applicant must provide the city with an estimate of the projected annualized rent that will be charged for the ADU or JADU.
	(B) Within 90 days after each January 1 following issuance of the building permit, the owner must report the actual rent charged for the ADU or JADU during the prior year. If the city does not receive the report within the 90-day period, the owner is ...

	(10) Building & Safety.
	(A) Must comply with building code. Subject to subsection (e)(10)(B) below, all ADUs and JADUs must comply with all local building code requirements.
	(B) No change of occupancy. Construction of an ADU does not constitute a Group R occupancy change under the local building code, as described in Section 310 of the California Building Code, unless the building official or Code Enforcement Division off...


	F. Specific ADU Requirements. The following requirements apply only to ADUs that require an ADU permit under subsection (d)(2) above.
	(1) Maximum Size.
	(A) The maximum size of a detached or attached ADU subject to this subsection (f) is 850 square feet for a studio or one-bedroom unit and 1,000 square feet for a unit with two or more bedrooms.
	(B) An attached ADU that is created on a lot with an existing primary dwelling is further limited to 50 percent of the floor area of the existing primary dwelling.
	(C) Application of other development standards in this subsection (f), such as FAR or lot coverage, might further limit the size of the ADU, but no application of the percent-based size limit in subsection (f)(1)(B) above or of an FAR, front setback, ...

	(2) Floor Area Ratio (FAR). No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the total FAR of the lot to exceed 45 percent, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.
	(3) Setbacks.
	(A) ADUs that are subject to this subsection (f) must conform to 4-foot side and rear setbacks. ADUs that are subject to this subsection (f) must conform to 25-foot front setbacks, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.
	(B) No setback is required for an ADU that is subject to this subsection (f) if the ADU is constructed in the same location and to the same dimensions as an existing structure.

	(4) Lot Coverage. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the total lot coverage of the lot to exceed 50 percent, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.
	(5) Minimum Open Space. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may cause the total percentage of open space of the lot to fall below 50 percent, subject to subsection (f)(1)(C) above.
	(6) Passageway. No passageway, as defined by subsection (c)(9) above, is required for an ADU.
	(7) Parking.
	(A) Generally. One off-street parking space is required for each ADU. The parking space may be provided in setback areas or as tandem parking, as defined by subsection (c)(12) above.
	(B) Exceptions. No parking under subsection (f)(7)(A) is required in the following situations:
	(i) The ADU is located within one-half mile walking distance of public transit, as defined in subsection (c)(11) above.
	(ii) The ADU is located within an architecturally and historically significant historic district.
	(iii) The ADU is part of the proposed or existing primary residence or an accessory structure under subsection (d)(1)(A) above.
	(iv) When on-street parking permits are required but not offered to the occupant of the ADU.
	(v) When there is an established car share vehicle stop located within one block of the ADU.
	(vi) When the permit application to create an ADU is submitted with an application to create a new single-family or new multifamily dwelling on the same lot, provided that the ADU or the lot satisfies any other criteria listed in subsections (f)(7)(B)...

	(C) No Replacement. When a garage, carport, covered parking structure, or uncovered parking space is demolished in conjunction with the construction of an ADU or converted to an ADU, those off-street parking spaces are not required to be replaced.

	(8) Architectural Requirements.
	(A) The materials and colors of the exterior walls, roof, and windows and doors must be the same as those of the primary dwelling.
	(B) The roof slope must match that of the dominant roof slope of the primary dwelling. The dominant roof slope is the slope shared by the largest portion of the roof.
	(C) The exterior lighting must be limited to down-lights or as otherwise required by the building or fire code.
	(D) The ADU must have an independent exterior entrance, apart from that of the primary dwelling.
	(E) The interior horizontal dimensions of an ADU must be at least 10 feet wide in every direction, with a minimum interior wall height of seven feet.
	(F) No window or door of the ADU may have a direct line of sight to an adjoining residential property. Each window and door must either be located where there is no direct line of sight or screened using fencing, landscaping, or privacy glass to preve...
	(G) All windows and doors in an ADU less than 30 feet from a property line that is not a public right-of-way line must either be (for windows) clerestory with the bottom of the glass at least six feet above the finished floor, or (for windows and for ...

	(9) Landscape Requirements. Evergreen landscape screening must be planted and maintained between the ADU and adjacent parcels as follows:
	(A) At least one 15-gallon size plant must be provided for every five linear feet of exterior ADU wall. Alternatively, at least one 24” box size plant must be provided for every ten linear feet of exterior ADU wall.
	(B) Plant specimens must be at least six feet tall when installed. As an alternative, a solid fence of at least six feet in height may be installed.
	(C) All landscaping must be drought-tolerant.
	(D) All landscaping must be from the city’s approved plant list.

	(10) Historical Protections. An ADU that is on or within 600 feet of real property that is listed in the California Register of Historic Resources must be located so as to not be visible from any public right-of-way.
	(11) Allowed Stories. No ADU subject to this subsection (f) may have more than one story, except that an ADU that is attached to the primary dwelling may have the stories allowed under subparagraph (e)(2)(D) of this section.

	G. Fees. The following requirements apply to all ADUs that are approved under subsections (d)(1) or (d)(2) above.
	(1) Impact Fees.
	(A) No impact fee is required for an ADU that is less than 750 square feet in size. For purposes of this subsection (g)(1), “impact fee” means a “fee” under the Mitigation Fee Act (Gov. Code § 66000(b)) and a fee under the Quimby Act (Gov. Code § 6647...
	(B) Any impact fee that is required for an ADU that is 750 square feet or larger in size must be charged proportionately in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. (E.g., the floor area of the ADU, divided by the floor area of the...

	(2) Utility Fees.
	(A) If an ADU is constructed with a new single-family home, a separate utility connection directly between the ADU and the utility and payment of the normal connection fee and capacity charge for a new dwelling are required.
	(B) Except as described in subsection (g)(2)(A), converted ADUs on a single-family lot that are created under subsection (d)(1)(A) above are not required to have a new or separate utility connection directly between the ADU and the utility. Nor is a c...
	(C) Except as described in subsection (g)(2)(A), all ADUs that are not covered by subsection (g)(2)(B) require a new, separate utility connection directly between the ADU and the utility for any utility that is provided by the city. All utilities that...
	(i) The connection is subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that is proportionate to the burden created by the ADU based on either the floor area or the number of drainage-fixture units (DFU) values, as defined by the Uniform Plumbing Code, u...
	(ii) The portion of the fee or charge that is charged by the city may not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service.



	H. Nonconforming Zoning Code Conditions, Building Code Violations, and Unpermitted Structures.
	(1) Generally. The city will not deny an ADU or JADU application due to a nonconforming zoning condition, building code violation, or unpermitted structure on the lot that does not present a threat to the public health and safety and that is not affec...
	(2) Unpermitted ADUs and JADUs constructed before 2020.
	(A) Permit to Legalize. As required by state law, the city may not deny a permit to legalize an existing but unpermitted ADU or JADU that was constructed before January 1, 2020, if denial is based on either of the following grounds:
	(i) The ADU or JADU violates applicable building standards, or
	(ii) The ADU or JADU does not comply with state ADU or JADU law or this ADU ordinance (section NN.NNN).

	(B) Exceptions:
	(i) Notwithstanding subsection (h)(2)(A) above, the city may deny a permit to legalize an existing but unpermitted ADU or JADU that was constructed before January 1, 2020, if the city makes a finding that correcting a violation is necessary to comply ...
	(ii) Subsection (h)(2)(A) above does not apply to a building that is deemed to be substandard in accordance with California Health and Safety Code section 17920.3.



	I. Nonconforming ADUs and Discretionary Approval. Any proposed ADU or JADU that would otherwise be allowed under this section but that does not conform to the objective design or development standards set forth in subsections (a) through (h) of this s...





{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



